
SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT #55 
Sweet Home, Oregon 

SCHOOL BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
To view live board meeting please visit the Sweet Home District website: sweethome.k12.or.us and click YouTube link 

Public Comments must be in writing before board meeting and sent to the Superintendent's Office 

Sweet Home Board Room 
1. Call the meeting to order/pledge 

2. Counselors Week Declaration 

3. ESPY Awards 

4. Agenda approval/changes 

5. Public Comments 

6. Student & Personnel Reports/Comments 
A. Certified & Classified Representatives 
B. Superintendent's Report 

1. Enrollment 

2. Music & Brew Fest Update 

3. Audit Report 

4. District/School State Report Card Data 

5. Graduation Rates 

6. SHSD "I Love Reading" Day 

7. Restraint and Seclusion 

8. Health Update 

9. All Students Belong 

7. Consent Agenda 
A. Approve minutes from the January 10, 2022 
B. Accept resignation from Michael Rolph, Special Education Teacher at 

Hawthorne Elementary effective June 17, 2022 
C. Accept resignation from Dave Tolle, Science teacher at the Sweet Home 

High School effective January 31, 2022 
D. Approve hire of Tamara White, Temporary Special Ed Teacher at Holley 

Elementary/Charter School effective February 9, 2022 

8. Information/Discussion 
A. Budget Update, ESSER Report. State Revenue Forecast Update 

B. Facility Report 
C. Board Policies - First Reading 

ACB - Every Student Belongs 
ACB-AR - Bias Incident Complaint Procedure 
DH - Loss Coverage 
EEA-AR - School Bus Scheduling and Routing 
GBA-AR-Veterans' Preference 
GBL- Personnel Records 
GBLA- Disclosure of Information DELETE 
GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) - Family Leave 
GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) - Oregon Family Leave 
IGBAF-AR -Special Education - Individualized Education Program 
IGBAG-AR -Special Education - Procedural Safeguards 
IGBB -Talented and Gifted Program, Require 

February 14. 2022. 6:30 p.m. 
J. Redick Action 

J. Redick Action 

Information 

Presidents 
L. Riggs Information 

K. Strong/ Brad Turano (ZOOM) 

B. Riggs 

R. Brown 

B. Riggs 

T. Holub 

T. Holub 

C. Henry/Russ Davis (ZOOM) 

J. Redick ALL Action 

ALL Information 

K. Strong 
J. Darwood 

http:sweethome.k12.or.us


9. Action Items J. Redick Action 

10. Board Comments Information 

11. Executive Session 
A. ORS 192.660 (2) (d) - Classified Bargaining 
B. 192.660 (2) (i) - Superintendent Evaluation 

12. Return to Regular Session 

13. Late Items 

14. Future Agenda Items 

A. Next Board Officers Meeting March 7, 2022 at 3:30 p.m. Superintendent's Office 

B. Board Work Session March 9, 2022 at 6:00 p.m. 

C. Next Board Meeting March 14, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in DO Board Room 

J. Redick ALL Information 

15. Adjournment J. Redick Action 



2 

Sweet Home School District 
Celebrates Contributions of School Counselors During 

National School Counseling Week 

Sweet Home, OR (February 7) - The Sweet Home School District (SHSD) celebrates school 
counselors during National School Counseling Week from February 7 through February 11. A 
focus on our counselors being an essential support staff to each and every child is important to 
highlight during the pandemic and beyond. 

"We honor and celebrate our school counselors all year and every day for the maryy ways in 
which they use their professional support skills for students and staff members," said SHSD 
Superintendent Lisa Riggs. "The incredible support they are able to provide daily highlights the 
incredible work of these dedicated mental health professionals, and we are grateful for all they 
do for us, our students, staff members, and families. I know how hard our school counselors 
have worked to bring our District family together, work with our students as they plan for the 
future, and address the mental health issues our students and families are facing during this time. 
Their work profoundly impacts the lives of our students not only when they are in our schools, 
but for many years after they graduate." 

Students' unmet mental health needs can be a significant obstacle to student academic, career, 
and social/emotional development, and can even compromise school safety. School counselors 
enhance awareness of mental health, provide support for academic, career, and social/emotional 
development; short-term counseling interventions; and referrals to community resources for 
long-term assistance. Counselors advocate for the mental health needs of all students, and Sweet 
Home School District ensures there are counselors in all schools when staff is available. 
Counselors promote the development and implementation of a comprehensive school counseling 
program, and are equipped with the essential skills, knowledge, and resource connections to 
remove barriers and promote access to a high-quality education while supporting overall student 
success. 

National School Counselor Week is an annual celebration sponsored by the American School 
Counselor Association and is set aside each year to focus public attention on the extensive 
contributions of school counselors within the US school system. Counselors are actively engaged 
in helping students explore their abilities, strengths, interests, and talents while working in 
partnership with families. They focus on positive ways to enhance students' academic, career, 
and social-emotional development, partnering with teachers to ensure students can realize their 
potential and set healthy and realistic goals for themselves. 



ESPY AWARD WINNERS 

February 14, 2022 

11th Grade High School Colby Burns 

High School 9th Grade Leelle James 

7th Grade Xavier Pennington Jr. High 

8th Grade Jr. High Caden Eide 

znd Grade Foster Violet Wilson 

znd Grade Foster Blake Bellon 

Hawthorne 1st Grade Willow Hart 

znd Grade Hawthorne Nathan Uhlry 

3rd Grade Holley Eloise Fahay 

znd Grade Holley Gabby Chiaffiano 

Oak Heights 3 rd Grade Abigail Meek 

Oak Heights Kinder Jaxson Hutson 

3rd Grade Charter School Journee Miner 

3rd Grade Charter School Brooklyn Cunningham 



Sweet Home School District Enrollment 

As of: February 7th, 2022 

· As ofnate: ·•. 9/13/21 1.••10/5/21 
K 101 186 
1 131 144 
2 161 174 
3 131 153 
4 149 162 
5 165 191 
6 167 181 
7 175 175 
8 178 178 
9 183 175 
10 205 199 
11 155 151 
12 195 202 

• ffotah•~i, ii;ftd96',;;. ')%~2.2_7'1~-1~(, 

As of Date: 9/13/21 10/5/21 
Foster 339 323 
Hawthorne 238 281 
Hollev 124 139 
Oak Heiqhts 304 303 
Charter 0 134 
Junior Hiqh 353 353 
High School* 738 727 
P.G.S.** 
Exoanded Oot. 
Tota.1~,::,_..•11liilir1l9i;i3.•>;;; }}S;;;226!!lliili!li 

'11/1/21 . 12/6/21 · 1/3/22 . 2/7/22 
179 184 181 179 
148 150 149 143 
175 177 169 169 
157 160 158 157 
162 168 169 167 
184 194 182 181 
180 191 188 190 
177 175 176 175 
175 174 177 174 
174 173 173 177 
194 193 190 188 
145 149 143 147 
195 195 195 192 

·•'•2245 .. ; 2283.ss,..; .;.,;,2.zsor::,i :~i::;;2.•239 l ;"i ~' -· -'. ,, . ; . 
. 

.1.1/1/21 12/6/21 1/3/22 2/7/22 
322 349 323 320 
287 286 286 276 
142 151 151 145 
303 309 307 316 
131 129 129 129 
352 349 353 349 
708 710 701 704 

~~2:i~s:rf::U:: liH~2.28!a~ C~21Z:_S.Q~4~~; ~2239.'.ct·. ).:•::.... _._ .·_.:( 

; .. · ·-_-_. ,, ·- -··- . 

._ . ,'._ ;;<;•;;.•;;}i.;;• ,,...... . 

, .. ~If' . ... 

· .. ·.•·.• 
•• 

··H~ ; 

; ; 

. 

··~ 

**Post Graduate Scholars 

Enrollment includes 12 GED students as of 02/07/2022 

~ co 
~ 



SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT ENROLLMENT 

As of: February 7th, 2022 2/7/2022 2126/2021 212812020 3/112019 
GRADE K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 21-22 20-21 19-20 18-19 

4D.L. Total Total Total Total 
2D.L. 2D.L. 3D.L. 2D.L. 31 7D.L. 3D.L. 

FO 25 18 17 12 19 27 24 320 308 333 338 
28 18 20 26 28 25 26 

McMahand II 2 l 3 7 

3D.L. 3D.L. 3D,L, 4D.L. 

HA 16 15 16 19 22 21 28 276 300 364 349 
17 12 18 81 14 19 28 DISTANCE LEARING STUDENTS INCLUDED IN TOTALS 

I 22 "TOTAL 124 DISTANCE LEARINGSTUDENTS 

I I 
Rolph/Pals 3 I 31 I I I 6 

Collins/Pals I I II 31 21 21 3 IO 
Rivers/Pals 4 II 21 I I 5 

2D.L. 1 D.L. 2D.L. 

HO 17 18 21 21 24 27 17 145 136 155 144 

1 D.L. 

I D.L. 3D.L. 3D.L. 2 D.L. 3D.L. 31 

OH 26 20 25 33 28 121 19 316 248 273 286 
25 22 22 17 12 28 27 

29 

CHARTER 18 18 20 20 18 17 18 129 133 142 138 

5 D.L. 6TII GRADE 7D.L. 9 D.L. 

JR.HIGH 175 174 349 345 353 352 
9D.L. IOD.L II D.L 19D.L 

HIGH SCHOOL: 177 188 147 192 704 689 662 676 
P.G.S.' 0 0 0 0 
A.C.T. 0 0 0 0 
SHO2.0 0 0 0 0 

GRADE K I 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 IO II 12 

TOTAL 179 143 169 157 167 181 190 175 174 177 188 147 192 2239 2159 2282 2283 
w/oACT 2239 2159 2282 2283 -co 

~ 



GRADE K 1 2 3 4 5 
classes classes classes classes classes classes 

FO 
25 18 17 12 19 27 
28 18 20 26 28 25 

PALS 0 0 0 
OP Room l 2 l 0 3 
T.FO 53 37 39 39 47 55 

HA 
16 15 16 19 22 21 
17 12 18 8 14 19 

CPals) 7 l 5 0 2 2 
T.HA 40 28 39 27 38 42 

HO 16 18 20 20 23 27 

17 18 21 21 24 27 

OH 26 20 25 33 28 12 
25 22 22 17 12 28 

OP.Rm 0 0 0 0 0 0 
T.OH 51 42 47 50 40 40 

T. Charter 18 18 20 20 18 17 

18 18 20 20 18 17 

TOTAL K-6 STUDENTS 
JR. HIGH 
HIGH SCHOOL 
P.G.S.* 
A.C.T. 
GRADE K 1 2 3 4 5 
TOTAL 179 143 166 157 167 181 

2/26/2021 128 168 144 177 159 179 
2/28/2020 186 167 166 185 195 172 
5/28/2021 135 174 145 176 164 183 

6 7 8 9 10 11 
classes classes classes classes classes classes 

24 
26 
0 
0 

50 

28 
28 
3 

59 

18 

17 

19 
27 
0 

46 

18 

18 

175 174 
177 188 147 

6 7 8 9 10 11 
190 175 174 177 188 147 
170 177 168 189 155 191 
196 174 179 157 181 155 
169 174 168 194 159 193 

12 
classes TOTAL 

320 308 

273 300 

145 136 

316 248 

129 133 

1183 1125 
349 345 

192 704 689 
0 0 
0 0 

12 
192 2236 2159 

154 2159 
169 2282 
135 2169 

333 

364 

155 

273 

142 

1267 
353 
662 

0 
0 

2282 

°" co 
~ 

338 

349 

144 

286 

138 

1255 
352 
676 

0 
0 

2283 



~ 
( we-et Hol"le
) SCHOOL DISTRICT 

To: 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Board of Directors 

Kevin Strong 

Fiscal Year 2021 financial Statements and Audit Report 

February 4, 2022 

6B3 
MEMORANDUM 

Please find attached the fiscal year 2021 financial report, the Student Activity Funds report and the Auditor's 
Communication to the Governing Body. 

Highlights include: 

• The auditors issued a "clean" opinion on the financial statements with no reservations. 

• The District's net position in the government-wide financial statements increased by $2,764,460 during 
the fiscal year primarily due to the District's General Fund ending fund balance increasing by $1,848,409 
during the fiscal year from $1,206,472 to $3,054,881. General Fund revenues increased as compared to 
the prior fiscal year while General Fund expenditures decreased. The largest portion of General Fund 
revenue is from the State School Fund which pays school districts based on the higher of current year or 
prior year enrollment. This calculation provided financial relief last year when enrollment decreased 
largely due to the COVID-19 pandemic. Meanwhile, expenditures decreased due to unfilled positions, 
minimal substitute costs and lower expenses for items such as bus fuel. The June 30, 2021 fund balance 
was 12.2 percent of the General Fund's fiscal year revenues. 

• The District's total outstanding debt decreased by $1,429,472 (5.9 percent) during the fiscal year as the 
District continued to meet its debt service schedule requirements. 

• The District implemented GASB Statement No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. As a result of GASB 84, the 
District reclassified its Student Body Activity Fund, Early Retirement Fund and JOSAI Exchange Program 
Fund from Trust and Agency Funds to Special Revenue Funds. 

• District expenditures were within authorized appropriations in all areas except for Special Revenue -
Instruction. The budget was built assuming that we would use much of our Special Revenue Funds on 
support services. Instead, we spent more on instruction and considerably less on support services. 

• The Student Activity Funds audit report is also attached. There were no findings. The high school has a 
balance of $452,238 and the Junior High School has a balance of $48,523. Pages 7 and 8 provide 
greater detail so you can see the balance for each individual high school and junior high school program. 

• The Oregon Public Employees Retirement System's unfunded liability remains a significant concern. 
Based on the most recent valuation date (December 31, 2020) the system's unfunded actuarial liability 
was $28 billion and our share (net of our side account) was $13,525,880 based on an assumed future 
earnings rate of 6.9 percent for the system's investment portfolio. The encouraging news is that the 2021 
rate of return was 20.5 percent. However, markets have been much more volatile in early 2022. 
Additional PERS information is included in the Management Discussion and Analysis section of the 
financial report. 

Brad Turano with Pauly Rogers and Company plans to attend the February School Board meeting virtually in 
case you have any questions for our auditors. The District's financial statement is also available on line at 
http:/ /sweethome. k 12.or. us/departments/business/ 



SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT 6B7 
PHYSICAL RESTAINT AND SECLUSION ANNUAL REPORT 

Reporter's Name: Thad Holub, Director of Student Services 

Date Presented to Board: February 14, 2022 

Incident T~~e Total# Comments 

Physical Restraints 1 

Seclusions 0 

Students Placed in Physical Restraints 1 

Students Placed in Seclusion 0 

Incidents Resulting in Injury 0 

Incidents Resulting in Death 0 

Students Placed in Physical Restraint or 0 
Seclusion more than 10 days 

Student Intervention Type Staff Race/ Gender Disability Migrant ELL Econ. 

Trained Ethnicity Y/N Y/N Y/N Dis 

Y/N Y/N 

Al Restraint y W/NH F y N N y 

Letters indicate students; numbers count the incidents 



--
Check List Date Initials nr-, 7 
Posted on District Website February 15, 2022 

Available at Main Office February 15, 2022 

Schools Received a Copy February 15, 2022 

Parents Notified How to Access Report February 15, 2022 

Date Report Was Completed August 31, 2021 



On February 7, 2022, the Oregon Health Authority (OHA) announced future changes to 
statewide indoor face covering rules (OAR 333-019-1025 and 333-019-1015). 

By the end of March, hospitalizations are projected to fall below pre-Omicron levels (fewer 
than 400 COVID-19 hospitalizations). Oregon has fared better than almost every state in 
the nation throughout the pandemic with some of the lowest cases (3rd lowest) and death 
rates (8th lowest) in the country, because Oregonians made smart choices, like wearing 
masks and getting booster shots. 

If the predicted pathway continues, then no later than March 31st, OHA will lift the mask 
requirements from the statewide indoor mask rule (333-019-1025). If hospitalizations fall to 
safer levels more quickly, before March 31st, state health officials will consider lifting the 
statewide mask rule sooner for indoor public spaces. 

What This Means For Schools 

OHA will lift the mask rule (333-019-1015) in schools on March 31. This date is 
established to provide certainty and planning time for schools. The March 31 date to 
lift the school mask rule occurs after the majority of schools complete spring break. 

As of March 31, the decision to require universal masking in school settings will rest 
with decision makers in school districts, charter schools, private schools, and local 
public health authorities. The Center for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), OHA 
and ODE continue to strongly advise the use of face coverings in schools in order to 
reduce the spread of COVID-19 and minimize the impact of quarantine through the 
school year. 

Masks are required on public transportation, which includes school buses until lifted 
by the federal government and cannot be waived by state or local authorities. 

OHA and ODE continue to work together to update school guidance so schools can 
continue to operate safely after mask rules are lifted. 

How Schools Can Prepare 

The March 31 date gives schools time to prepare for the transition from an operational 
standpoint, and gives families time to get boosted, and to get their kids vaccinated. Among 
the things schools can do are: 

• Encourage eligible staff and students ages 5 and up to get vaccinated and boosted 
now if they're not. 

o Vaccination remains the best protection against serious illness from COVID-
19 and reduces spread of the disease. 

oVaccination prevents quarantine when exposed to COVID-19 and ensures 
access to in-person learning. 

oGet Vaccinated Oregon. 

6B8 



• Revisit and strengthen COVID-19 mitigation protocols. which will change if schools 
decide not to implement universal masking indoors. For example, the Test to Stay 
Protocol is only available in settings where universal masking is in place. 

• Collaborate with school and district leaders. local school boards, represented 
employee groups, students, families, and community to align decision making 
based on data and the priority of access to in person education. ODE has 
provided tools and resources for local decision making that supports continuity of 
services. These include: 

o Data-Based Decision Guide; 

a Equity Decision Tool; 

o Local Data Dashboard; 

oCare and Connection Mental Health and Wellbeing Resources for students 
and staff; and 

oMuch more. 

Schools may continue to require students, staff, volunteers, and/or visitors to wear face 
coverings during indoor or outdoor activities, similar to other COVID-19 mitigation protocols 
such as physical distancing, and airflow/ventilation. Similarly, schools may be required by 
local ordinance to continue requiring staff and students to wear face coverings. 

In the Absence of Universal Masking: 

• Schools will return to using the general exposure definition: Having been within 
6 feet of a confirmed or presumptive COVID-19 case for 15 minutes or more 
within one day, or having been in contact with the infectious secretions of a 
confirmed or presumptive COVID-19 case. 

o This will likely result in more days out of school for unvaccinated students 
and staff, and more classroom and school closures due to staffing 
constraints. As we have seen throughout the pandemic, this will impact 
district's medically complex and historically underserved students, staff, 
and communities the hardest. 

• In the absence of universal masking, schools will not be able to use the Test to Stay 
Protocol to allow students and staff to attend school during a quarantine period. 

o Universal use of face coverings remains a prerequisite for the Test to Stay 
Protocol. Diagnostic testing will remain accessible to all schools 
regardless of mask use. 

a General quarantine guidance for students and staff who return on day 6 of 
their quarantine will include the continued need to wear a well fitted mask 
for days 6 through 10 of their quarantine. 

• Universal masking is a key measure to prevent the spread of COVID-19. In its 
absence, schools should anticipate significant increases in workload from contact 
tracing and notification. 

The impact of this change both for school districts and schools that maintain 
universal masking and those that make masking optional will take time, careful 
planning, and collaboration. 

6B8 



SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 55 

Sweet Home, Oregon 
7A 

Board Chairman Jason Redick called the regular meeting of the board of Directors of Sweet Home School 
District No. 55 to order at 6:30 p.m. on January 10, 2022. This meeting was located at Sweet Home 
District Boardroom 

Board Members in Attendance 
Jason Redick, Mike Reynolds, (ZOOM) Jim Gourley, (ZOOM) Janice Albert, (Zoom) Debra Brown, Dale 
Keene, (ZOOM) Sara Hoffman: Absent: Jason Van Eck, Kevin Hill 

Superintendent: Lisa Riggs; Administrators: Kevin Strong, (Zoom) Colleen Henry, (ZOOM) Barbi Riggs, 
(Zoom) Thad Holub, (Zoom) Darel Bidwell, (Zoom) Ralph Brown, (Zoom) Nate Tyler, (Zoom) Aaron Huff, 
(Zoom) Terry Martin, (Zoom) Mark Looney, Luke Augsburger, (Zoom) Debbie Phillips, (Zoom) Josh Dargis, 
(Zoom) Todd Barrett Certified: Steve Thorpe; Classified: none Board Recording Secretary: Julie Emmert 

Other Attendance: Benny, New Era; Robert Shamek, Oregon Jamboree 

2. ESPY AWARADS 
Every month two students are selected from each school and presented with an ESPY Award at the Board 
Meeting. The award is presented to students who are doing well academically and have an exceptionally 
positive attitude about school. They demonstrate respect and responsibility towards staff and their peers. 
They show courage by not conforming to peer pressure and refuse to accept anyone who bullies. 
Selections for the month of January are: Foster School - Hailey Baker, Autumn Bryant; Hawthorne 
School - Lincoln Sutton, Abby Banker; Holley School - Boone Cupp, Weston Olson; Oak Heights 
School - Melany Huff, Logan Barrett; Charter School- Tripp Carr, Zaiden Walters; SH Jr. High School
Miu Simmons, Ty Newcomer; and SH High School - Max Klumph, Christian Mamac. Congratulations 
to all of this month's ESPY Award winners! 

3. Agenda Approval/Changes 
Chairman Redick called for changes and/or approval of the agenda. 

Motion No. 22-01: Board Member Mike Reynolds moved to approve the agenda as Presented. Board 
Member Dale Keene seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously 

4. Public Comments: No Public Comments 

5. Student & Personnel Reports/Comments 
A. Certified & Classified Representatives: Steve Thorpe shared that teachers and support staff are 

doing amazing and working hard through this time. Staff were excited to hear from Superintendent 
Riggs via an email regarding PLC's and staffing. Set regular meetings with Superintendent- third 
Tuesday of each month. Nervous about a shutdown, would like to see kids stay in school and doing 
normal things. 

B. Superintendent's Report: 

1. Enrollment: Superintendent Riggs commented that enrollment is increasing with many 

students return to in school. 

2. Sweet Home Jamboree - Robert Shamek from the Oregon Jamboree. This will be the 30th 

year for the Jamboree. Shared that they will be following all of the Covid rules and 
guidelines. Mr. Shamek proposed a Music and Brew's event that would be on school district 
property. This would take place in April and would use tents outside. This will be a two
day event and have approx. 50 campsites. Will have a safety plan prepared. Kevin Strong 
will look into being able to serving alcohol on school property. 

3. Board Recognition: Superintendent Riggs thanked and acknowledge our board members 
and read the proclamation. 



4. Superintendent Evaluation: Kristin Miles has several hours still available and she does. She 
can help us through this process. Dates -Julie Emmert will ask Kristin for some dates. 7 A 
Informal this year. 

5. ODE Covid Update- Test to Stay: Superintendent Riggs, Thad Holub and Colleen Henry 
shared the following information: 
It's our highest priority is to keep kids learning in person every day. 

• Nearly all children learn better when taught in-person. 
Children and families rely on schools to provide a caring and safe environment. 

• Many need access to a solid breakfast and a warm lunch. 
• For parents and families, consistency matters, and for many, school is a way to ensure they can 

go to work and support their family. 

OHA and ODE will continue to issue School Health Advisories to identify additional steps families, 
schools, and/or communities mil take to help keep our children safely learning in our schools. 
The School Health Advisories name actions that individuals, families, schools, and/or communities /;Q!l 

take to reduce the spread of COVID-19 and help schools stay open to in-person instruction. 

Communities will be experiencing the impacts of the Omicron variant over the next several weeks. 
• Omicron variant may result in less severe disease than previous variants but it spreads much 

more quickly. 
• This surge is likely to be much steeper than the Delta variant, 

impacting hospitals more severely than we experienced in the fall. 
• Indoor settings in which people do not adhere with purpose and 

intention to masking requirements and other layered mitigation safety protocols is expected to result 
in rapid transmission. 
Student access to in-person instruction is under threat. 

Our best tool to limit the spread of COVID-19 is to follow a multi-layered approach to health & safety 
protocols: 
D Reinforce the importance of layered mitigation efforts. 

D Consider implementing additional layers of protection. 

D Exclude individuals showing symptoms of COVID-19 or those who are close contact. 

D If students or staff show COVID-19 symptoms or the ·school is aware they are a close contact, they 
must exclude the individual as per OAR 333-019-0010 (3) & (4). Schools may offer testing to the 
individual through OHA's Diagnostic Testing Program. 

D Update Safe Return to In-Person Instruction and Continuity of Services Plan. 

D Work with health partners to offer vaccination clinics. 

D Pause extracurricular activities .2! ensure they follow the same layered mitigation safety protocols 
practiced during the school day. 

D Hold family/community events online rather than in person 

Test to Stay is a protocol and form of modified quarantine that allows exposed individuals to attend 
school during their quarantine period if they remain symptom-free and test negative for COVID-19. 

Self-test for students/staff was given. 

ODECOV1Dl9@ode.state.or.us. 

6. Consent Agenda 
A. Approved minutes from the December 13, 2021 School Board Meeting 
B. Accept Donation from Alyson Ellis to the Jr. High; Martin Yale Paper Folder 



Motion No. 22-02: Boord Member Dale Keene, moved to approve the revised consent agenda a7 A 
presented. Board Member Mike Reynolds seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

7. Information/Discussion 
A. Budget Update, ESSER Report, Long Term Maintenance Application - Kevin Strong gave report on 

budget - increase on classified, substitute, extra duty, property premiums and gas for buses. 
ESSER- updates on spending. Mr. Strong also shared the Long-Range Facilities Committee 
Membership Application. 

B. Facility Report- Josh Darwood shared a video of improvements at Foster, the Jr. High and the High 
School 

C. Board Policy Rewrite 

8. Action Items: 
A. Resolution #02-2122, LBL Local Service Plan 

Motion No. 22-03: Board Member Mike Reynolds, moved to approve Resolution #02-2122, LBL Local 
Service Plan. Board Member Dale Keene seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

B. Approve 2022-2023 Budget Calendar 

Motion No. 22-04: Board Member Mike Reynolds, moved to approve the 2022-2023 Budget Calendar. 
Board Member Dale Keene seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

C. Board Policies- 3rd Reading 
JFCJ -Weapons in Schools 
KGBB - Firearms Prohibited 

Motion No. 22-05: Board Member Dale Keene, moved to approve Board Policies JFCJ and KGBB. Board 
Member Mike Reynolds seconded the motion. The motion passed unanimously. 

9. Board Comments: NONE 

10. Late Items - No late items 

11. Future Agenda Items 
A. Listening Session at the High School, January 12, 2022 at 6:00 in the Auditorium 

B. Next Board Officers Meeting February 7, 2022 at 3:30 p.m. Superintendent's Office 

C. Next Board Meeting February 14, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in DO Board Room 

12. Adjournment 

The meeting adjourned at 8:05 p.m. 

Signature, Baard Chairman Julie Emmert, Board Recording Secretary 
(This meeting was also recorded and saved supt/board/audio) 



-Sweet Horne 
SC HOOL 0 1$TRICT •M 

Fwd: Michael Rolph- Resignation 

Thad Holub <thad.holub@sweethome.k12.or.us> 
To: Julie Emmert <julie.emmert@sweethome.k12.or.us> 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Michael Rolph <michael.rolph@sweethome.k12.or.us> 
Date: Tue, Feb 1, 2022 at 3: 15 AM 
Subject: Michael Rolph- Resignation 

Julie Emmert <julie.emmert@sweethome.k-o/oB> 

Tue, Feb 1, 2022 at 8:54 AM 

To: Deborah Phillips <deborah.phillips@sweethome.k12.or.us>, Thad Holub <thad.holub@sweethome.k12.or.us> 

Dear Thad and Debbie, 

Please accept this letter as formal notification of my resignation from Sweet Home School District. My last day of work will be June 17, 
2022. -

I really appreciate the experience, growth opportunities and career development I have gained while working with you. My successor, 
like me, will be fortunate to be part of your dynamic and supportive team of educators. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Rolph 

Thad Holub 
Director of Student Services 
Title IX Coordinator 
Sweet Home School District 
541-367-7115 



0 
SweetHon,ie-

Julie Emmert <julie.emmert@sweethome.k1';/o{;;, 
scHooL DISTRICT ... 

resignation 

Dave Tolle <dave.tolle@sweethome.k12.or.us> Mon, Jan 31, 2022 at 3:17 PM 
To: Ralph Brown <ralph.brown@sweethome.k12.or.us>, Julie Emmert <julie.emmert@sweethome.k12.or.us> 

Good afternoon Ralph, 
Please accept this letter as notice of my resignation from my position as a teacher at Sweet Home High School, effective today. It has 
been an honor to serve our students for the past 15 years and it has been a pleasure working with you and the Sweet Home High School 
Team. I appreciate your tremendous support - you have been an amazing administrator to work for. 
Sincerely, 
Dave Tolle 



r-- _- ___ -- -~WE~'F_:EiQMt§a:1:1~m~~!~J:RJCJ' 55_ ~--~--J 
RECOMMENDATION TO HIRE 

CANDIDATE NAME: Tamara White -----------------

POSmON: \e~ s~ f tl 
JOB#: 71-2122 

DATE: _....:2"'-/~8'-"/2aa1'-----

BUILDING: Holley/Charter 

ADMINISTRATOR: Josh Dargis 

Does this candidate hold a current Oregon Lic~nse? 
Does this candidate hold an Out-of-State License? 
Is this candidate in the process of obtaining an Oregon License? 

Type of Endorsement: ,...-T!iJDPO✓~L • lz c{ 
Have three reference checks been completed? 

Effective Date: __ 2""/__.9,,._/-=2=-1 ____________ _ 

Other Information: 

Office use only: 

~::H::8 
yes D no Li 

yes Li no D 

Superintendent review date: 
Board approval date: 

s:/forms/hiring/recommendation to hire 

7D 



YTD GENERAL FUND SPENDING COMPARED TO ADOPTED BUDGET & YTD SPENDING LAST YEAR 2021-2022 Spending by Function 

BY OBJECT CODE Function Budget ~ 0
/, of Bdgt 

1/31/2022 1000 Instruction 14,637,062 5,875,565 40.1% 
2000 Support 11,349,556 5,452,524 48.0% 
3000 Community 303,649 147.115 48.4% 

2021-22 Year~to•Year Spending 5200 Transfers 957,500 0 0.0% 

Adopted YTD YTD Increase/ as a% of 27,247,767 11.475,204 42.1% 

OBJECT DESCRIPTION Budget as of 1/31/21 as of 1/31/22 <Decrease> budget 

0111/0123 Licensed Salaries 6,885,802 2,60 1,515 2,630,705 29,190 38.2% 

0112/0124 Classified Salaries 4,210,622 1,760,570 1,913,541 152,971 45.4% 

0113/0114 Administrators/Mana~ers 1,688,059 904,399 939,521 35, 122 55.7% 

SA 0121 Substitutes - Licensed 241,000 12,069 68,656 56,587 28.5% 

0122 Substitutes - Classified 406,000 66,333 151,529 85,196 37.3% 

0132 Overtime 32,000 3,683 18,817 15, 134 58.8% 

0134/0135 Extra Duty 359,480 102,434 214,324 111,890 59.6% 
0210 Public Employees Retirement System 1,579,867 553,759 576,967 23,208 36.5% 
0213 PERS Debt Service 1,7 17,247 699,083 720,146 21 ,063 41.9% 

0220 Social Security 1,057,458 392,358 437,1 18 44,760 41.3% 

0231 Worker's Comeensation 125,571 49,3 19 56,910 7,591 45.3% 

0232 Unemployment Compensation 41,429 10,202 11 ,385 1,183 27.5% 

0240 Contractual Employee Benefits 2,994,500 1,082,278 1, 108, 187 25,909 37.0% 

0241 Tuition Reimbursement - Admin. 10,000 0 0 0 0 .0% 

0242 Tuition Reimbursement - Certified 20,000 0 I 1,329 11 ,329 56.6% 
0243 Conference/Wrkshp Reimb. - Certified 10,000 558 0 (558) 0.0% 
0244 Conference/Wrkshp Reimb. - C!assif. 2,500 0 0 0 0.0% 
0245 District Paid Deferred Comp 20,750 6,636 11,510 4,874 55.5% 
0249 Personal Choice Enroll Fee 2,000 940 895 (45) 44.8% 

0312/03 I 9 lntructional Services 45,000 0 1,650 1,650 3.7% 

0321 Cleaning Services 12,500 6,607 6,722 115 53.8% 

0322 Repairs and Maintenance Services 54,360 26,791 24,682 (2, I 09) 45.4% 

0324 Rentals 6,000 15,905 360 ( 15,545) 6.0% 

0325 Electricity 367,000 147,834 151,771 3,937 41.4% 
0326 Fuel (Heating) 213,000 56,404 62,979 6,575 29.6% 

0327 Water and Sewal!e 244,000 96,241 125, 135 28,894 51.3% 

0328 Garbal,le 88,000 23,671 32,714 9,043 37.2% 

033X Other Transportation 77,850 6,027 5,160 (867) 6.6% 
0340 Travel 38,555 5,214 21,197 15,983 55.0% 
0351/9 Telephone/Data Communications 147,800 106,703 120,627 13,924 81.6% 

0353 Postal,le 25,000 9,389 5,674 (3,715) 22.7% 

0354 Advertisin£'.'.Public Notices 3,500 1, 142 2,455 1,313 70.1% 

0355 Printing and Binding 44,145 138 203 65 0.5% 
0360 Charter School Pa~ments I, I 75,000 647,965 647,244 (72 I) 55.1% 

0374 Other Tuition 35,000 3,200 9,789 6,589 28.0% 

038 1 Audit Services 25,000 19,700 20,850 1, 150 83.4% 

0382 Lel,lal Services 20,000 0 2,8 17 2,8 17 14.1% 

0384 Negotiation Services 7,500 0 0 0 0.0% 

0388 Election Services 4,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

0389 Other Non-instructional Profffcch 584,000 34 1,736 288,587 (53,149) 49.4% 

0410 Sueeiies and Materials (includes bus fuel) 278,332 100,061 205,462 105,401 73.8% 

041? Supplies Tires 15,000 17 0 ( 17) 0.0% 

0413 Supplies Vehicle Parts 70,000 9,828 13,78 1 3,953 19.7% 
0414 Supplies Custodial 135,000 69,828 60,449 (9,379) 44.8% 
0415 Supplies Maintenance 382,500 202,32 1 152,968 (49,353) 40.0% 
0416 Supplies Grounds 26,000 16,168 2,42 1 (13,747) 9.3% 
0417 Supplies Maintenance Vehicles 8,000 4,372 4,597 225 57.5% 
0420 Textbooks 1,970 0 1,637 1,637 83.1% 

0430 Library Books 10,100 632 7,874 7,242 78.0% 
0440 Periodicals 3,104 2,456 1,197 ( I ,259) 38.6% 

0460 Non-consumable Items 217,717 57, 146 89,774 32,628 41.2% 

0470 Computer Software 43,39 1 52,457 38,760 ( 13,697) 89.3% 

0480 Computer Hardware 64,778 147,997 76,200 (71 ,797) 117.6% 

052x/054x Equipment Acquisition 60,000 17,900 10,200 (7,700) 17.0% 

0640 Dues and Fees 41,880 51 ,939 72,687 20,748 173.6% 

065 1/5 Liability Insurance & Settlements 82,000 77,081 82,036 4,955 100.0% 

0653 Property Insurance Premiums 229,000 192,015 253,005 60,990 110.5% 

071 I Transfer to Josai 7,500 0 0 0 0.0% 

0712 Transfer to Long Term Maintenance 750,000 0 0 0 0 .0% 

0713 Transfer to PERS Reserve Fund 100,000 0 0 0 0.0% 

07 15 Transfer to Curriculumffech. Fund 100,000 0 0 0 0.0% 
27,247,767 10,763,021 11 ,475,204 712,183 42. 1% 



Sweet Home School District 
ESSER (Elementary and Secondary School Emergency Relief Fund) Spending 

As of January 31, 2022 

ESSER I 

Description 
Student Computer Purchases 
Salary- Director of Instructional Technology 
Benefits - Director of Instructional Technology 
Computer Software 
Custodial Supplies 
Software Support 
COVID Supplies 

ESSER I allocation = 
Amount remaining = 

IESSE:.~U I _,,,, 
,Description . . . . 
ischo6i.'l--i¥/ii;:.System Upgr~cte~ 
lcomputer'Ha.rc!ware . 
I . . • ,,., •. • 
•Moden'f[eacMr 
Zeni , ' ·•-'•• . is' .·.· . 

Instr 

Amount Notes: 
249,653.87 
108,467.98 
50,436.33 
37,520.65 Primarily Canvas Learning Mngmt. Software 
13,056.65 For enhanced cleaning 
8,430.00 for the Canvas Learning Mngmt. System 
4,208.44 Masks, Signage, Scrub Tops, etc. 

471,773.92 

471,773.92 

0.00 

Amount Notes: 
209,640,00 
267i9,1.Q;QO .. $204,582 for chromebooks, $63,328 for projectors 
,261boo':001 
: .' "··>•,>\t',','" '' 
fl';'9.Q9,qo 

10M;~J;;o;o 
rtiI~'f 1''.'t~ , includes $11,712 for charging carts 
,•,92 "308".'.79 , !nclud~ muitt-:y~r.subscriptlons fof IXL; Genera~on G!!nius, etc. 
. {iso.,10 
. ;J;,0-11 .5_4 

· •fci110iooo'.oo 
· }#/'81,698.00 

74,697.69 
1,029,829.56 

:Ess.~°ri'J,,f1,r(/'cJt1&h-;,, 1, 855,:251::00 
iAri]Ql.!nl'remaJning (after encumbrances}= 825,427;'4!i 

j ,.-~)t: ' . ,, ' ' ' :", '/' '. '.·:':·.·~-:/?<,· 
[ESSER UFunds are availablfl'{hrou9h September.30, 2023"• 
'. 
ESSER Ill 

Description 
Summer School 2021 to address learning loss 
Distance Learning Teacher 
Computer Hardware 
Charter School Allocation 

ESSER Ill a/location = 
Amount remaining = 

Amount Notes: 
60,902.00 
15,668.00 
2,483.00 

133,749.24 
212,802.24 

4,166,643.00 
3,953,840.76 

ESSER Ill Funds are available through September 30, 2024. 
20 percent must be spent on addressing learning loss 

FiscalY~A 
2020-202 
2020-2021 
2020-2021 
2020-2021 
2020-2021 
2020-2021 
2020-2021 

Fis~~i\Year 
2oio1iif21 
2021:2022 
202112022 
2021-2022 
2021-2022 
2021-2022 
.2021-2022 
2b21-2022 
2Q21:2022 
2021"2022· 
2021"2022• 

Fiscal Year 

2021-2022 
2021-2022 
2021-2022 



State Revenue Forecast Update 
February 9, 2022 

From: Morgan Allen, Deputy Executive Director of Policy and Advocacy, Coalition of Oregon SA 
School Administrators 

We wanted to pass on a quick note about Oregon's budget that was delivered to 
lawmakers this morning. 

Legislators again received stunning financial news this morning as the March Economic 
and Revenue Forecast showed another massive surge in tax collections. Net General 
Fund and Lottery revenues are up a combined $1.173 billion since the December 
Forecast, a robust growth of 4% in just 3 months. And since that previous forecast the 
projected personal kicker has almost doubled to $964.2 million and the projected 
corporate kicker has grown by over 150% to $633.8 million. And remember, the state is 
only a third of the way through the 2021-23 biennial budget period; expect those 
numbers to grow significantly in future forecasts. 

The state's reserve accounts (Education Stability Fund, Rainy Day Fund, and Cash 
Reserves) grew significantly again and are currently projected to top $5 billion during 
the 2021-23 biennium. This is equivalent to 20% of the General Fund Budget. Add in 
the strength of Corporate Activity Tax collections, and it is safe to say that Oregon's 
,budget is in the best financial position since the passage of Measure 5 in 1990. 

We believe there are two major takeaways from today's forecast: 

• First, it will significantly bolster our efforts to fund significant investments in the 
current session through House Bill 4030 to help address all the workforce 
challenges districts and ESDs are facing. It will also help our efforts to secure 
additional funding for summer learning and other programs to help increase 
learning opportunities for our students. 

• Second, and perhaps most importantly, as Oregon's economy continues to 
outpace projections significantly, our future funding advocacy work must focus on 
the need for continued, sustained investments to meet the needs of our students 
and communities. One of the complicating factors in this effort is the reality that 
enrollment has declined by almost 30,000 students since the start of school in 
2019. We will need to work together to make sure that we stabilize the budgets 
of our districts who have. seen enrollment drops and are actually facing budget 
reductions at a time when state revenues are so robust. 



OREGON 
SCHOOL BOARDS 

ASSOCIATION 

:··:t\t, 
. ( ·~ · ~--

Po I icy Updaf~ 
Inspire• Inform • Involve 

January 2022 

Join OSBA Policy 

Services staff on 

Thursday, February 

17, 2022, at 11 a.m. 

for the Policy 
Update Webinar. 

Watch for news 

commg soon. 

Policy Update is a 
subscription publication 

of the Oregon School 
Boards Association 

Jim Green 
Executive Director 

Mary Paulson 
Deputy Executive Director 

Haley Percell 
Chief Legal Counsel 

Director of Legal Services 
Michael Miller, Attorney 
Amy Williams, Attorney 

Tonyia Brady, Attorney 
Callen Sterling, Attorney 

Spencer Lewis 
Director of Policy Services 

Rick Stucky 
Policy Services Specialist 

Leslie Fisher 
Policy Services Specialist 

Colleen Allen 
Senior Policy Services 

Assistant 
Jean Chiappisi 

Policy Services Assistant 

If you have questions 
regarding this publication 

or OSBA, please call 
our offices: 

503-588-2800 or 800-578-6722 

Vol. 65 No. 2 sch 

CONTENTS 

ACB - Every Student Belongs, Required 
ACB-AR - Bias Incident Complaint Procedure, Required 
DH - Loss Coverage, Highly Recommended 
EEA-AR - School Bus Scheduling and Routing, Optional 
GBA-AR - Veterans' Preference, Highly Recommended 
GBL- Personnel Records, Required 
GBLA - Disclosure of Infom1ation, (previously highly recommended) DELETE 
GCBDNGDBDA-AR(l)-Family Leave*, Highly Recommended 
GGBDAi'GDODA-AR(l) 01cgon Fa:mily Le1we *, Highly R:ecommciidee 
IGBAF-AR - Special Education - Individualized Education Program, Required 
IGBAG-AR - Special Education - Procedural Safeguards, Required 
IGBB - Talented and Gifted Program, Required 

EVERY STUDENT BELONGS 

Summary 

In September 2020, the Oregon State Board of Education passed OAR 581-022-2312, called 
All Students Belong. As a result, OSBA released new policy ACB and an accompanying AR 
in October 2020. In February 2021, the Oregon State Board of Education made some 
adjustments, including changing the title to Every Student Belongs. Later in 2021, the Oregon 
Legislature passed House Bill 2697 which addresses similar issues, but uses different 
language. Finally in October 2021, the Oregon State Board of Education amended the 
language in the rule to more closely match the statutory language. 

In November 2021, OSBA released an updated version of ACB and ACB-AR. Because these 
versions were previously released, they are not included in this update. Questions regarding 
the updated versions should be directed to the policy department at OSBA. 

Collective Bargaining Impact 

None 

Local District Responsibility 

The board should review, revise and readopt with the recommended changes if changes have 
not been made since October 2021. 

This publication is designed to provide accurate and authoritative information regarding the 
subject matter covered. It is furnished with the understanding that policies should be reviewed by 
the district's legal counsel. 

Policy Update - January 2022 
Page 1 of 5 



Policy(ies) and ARs Impacted by these Revisions 

ACB - Every Student Belongs, Required 

ACB-AR - Bias Incident Complaint Procedure, Required 

LOSS COVERAGE 

Summary 

Policy DH, previously titled Bonded Employees and Officers, has been updated to Loss 
Coverage and language revised to reflect current terms and practices. 

Policy EEAB - School Bus Scheduling and Routing has been recoded to EEA-AR and is now 
an administrative regulation to policy EEA - Student Transportation Services. Additionally, 
language referencing staff personal use of school buses for transportation has been removed 
to avoid potential tax implications or ethics violations. 

Collective Bargaining Impact 

None 

Local District Responsibility 

If policy DH is included in the board's manual, consider updating and readopting. If the 
board's manual has policy EEAB, recommendations are to recode as an administrative 
regulation (AR), EEA-AR, and revise as recommended. It will be necessary to take action to 
rescind policy EEAB and resubmit the revision to the board as EEA-AR as an information 
item for their review if the desire is to add this AR .. 

Policy(ies) and ARs Impacted by these Revisions 

DH - Loss Coverage, Highly Recommended 

EEA-AR - School Bus Scheduling and Routing, Optional 

VETERANS'PREFERENCE 

Summary 

Senate Bill 184 (2021) modified ORS 408.230 to replace use of the term 'preference points' 
with percentage points for application of a veterans' prefererrce during the screening (if 
applicable), interviewing and appointing process for a public employer. The bill also added 
criteria in ORS 408.235 for additional circumstances for which an employer may treat an 
individual as a veteran or a disabled veteran. 

Collective Bargaining Impact 

None 

Local District Responsibility 

Review the Board's policy manual and ifGBA-AR is present, consider updating language in 
the AR. 

Policy Update-January 2022 

Page 2 of 5 



Policy(ies) and ARs Impacted by these Revisions 

OBA-AR - Veterans' Preference, Highly Recommended 

PERSONNEL RECORDS 

Summary 

After review of model sample policies GBL and GBLA, it was decided to combine the two 
policies. The resulting changes are proposed in this issue which includes the deletion of 
GBLA in lieu of changes made to model sample policy GBL - Personnel Records. 

Collective Bargaining Impact 

None 

Local District Responsibility 

Review and determine if the two referenced policies are listed in the board's policy manual; 
make the suggested changes to policy GBL - Personnel Records and rescind policy GBLA if 
it is present in the manual. 

Policy(ies) and ARs Impacted by these Revisions 

GBL - Personnel Records, Required 

GBLA - Disclosure of Information, (previously highly recommended) DELETE 

OREGON FAMILY MEDICAL LEA VE 

Summary 

House Bill 2474 passed by the 2021 Legislature modifies the Oregon Family Leave Act 
(OFLA) by establishing eligibility for protected leave under OFLA for all employees of a 
covered employer during a public health emergency, unless they had been employed fewer 
than 30 days or worked less than 25 hours per week on average in the 30 days leading up to 
the leave. The bill also establishes eligibility for employees if they separate, are eligible, and 
are reemployed within I 80 days, or because of a temporary cessation of scheduled hours. The 
bill allows for restoration of time worked after separation and reemployment under certain 
circumstances and allows employers to request verification of child care need. 

OSBA has changed the title of the AR for entities with 25-49 employees to "Oregon Family 
Leave*". 

OSBA has changed the title of the AR for entities with 50 or more employees to "Family 
Leave*". 

Collective Bargaining Impact 

Review collective bargaining agree1;1ent so it is compatible with new OFLA requirements. 

Local District Responsibility 

If the district has between 25-49 employees review highly recommended administrative 
regulation GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(I)- Oregon Family Leave• and update as necessary. 

Policy Updote-January 2022 
Page 3 of 5 



Collective Bargaining Impact 

None 

Local District Responsibility 

The Board should review the recommended changes to required policy IGBB - Talented and 
Gifted Program and adopt the changes. 

Policy(ies) and ARs Impacted by these Revisions 

IGBB - Talented and Gifted Program, Required 

ABOUT POLICY UPDATE 

Policy Update is a subscription newsletter providing a brief discussion of current policy 
issues of concern to Oregon school districts, education service districts, community colleges, 
and public charter schools. 

Sample model policies reflecting these issues and changes in state and federal law, if 
applicable, are part ofthis newsletter. These samples are offered as a starting point for 
drafting local policy and may be modified to meet particular local needs. They do not replace 
district legal counsel advice. 

To make the best use of Policy Update, we suggest you discuss the various issues it presents 
and use the sample model policies to determine which policies your district should develop or 
revise, get ideas for what a policy should contain, and as a starting point for editing, 
modifying and discussing your district's policy position. 

If you have questions about Policy Update, sample policies or policy in general, call OSBA 
Policy Services, 800-578-6722 or 503-588-2800. 

TRY OUR ONLINE POLICY DEMO 

OSBA's online policy service has a demo site for districts interested in a public online policy 
manual. This service saves time, resources and reams of paper. With one centrally located 
policy manual updated electronically, you have instant access to current district policies. 

Go to policy.osba.org and select "Policy Online Demo." The online manual includes a 
subscription to Policy Update and policy manual maintenance service to help keep policies 
current. 

OSBA offers several options. Contact Policy Services to determine the best option for you, 
800-578-6722 or 503-588-2800. 

Policy Update -January 2022 
Page 5 of 5 



~ 
-Sweet Home-

SCHOOL DISTRICT#55 

Code: ACB 
Adopted: l /11/2020 

Revision 1st Reading: 2/14/2022 

Every Students Belong 

All students are entitled to a high quality educational experience, free from discrimination or harassment 
based on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin. 

All employees are entitled to work in an environment that is free from discrimination or harassment based 
on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin. 

All visitors are entitled to participate in an environment that is free from discrimination or harassment 
based on perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or natio~al origin. 

"Bias incident" means a person's hostile expression of animus toward another person, relating to the other 
person's perceived race, color, religion, gender identity, sexual orientation, disability or national origin, of 
which criminal investigation or prosecution is impossible or inappropriate. Bias incidents may include 
derogatory language or behavior directed at or about any of the preceding demographic groups. 

"Symbol of hate" ~Ms',1!£ilib2ls;df:nep~~aztKii'c:.9.!Qgy6r,tfie~batti'~~gjfil'jli~,_Gc,}!f~<i~!!l.g)'.j. a symbel, 
image, er elijeet iliat ei,13resses aflimus efl ilie basis efraee, eeler, religiefl, gef!E!er idefltity, seirnal 
eriefltatiefl, disability er flatieflal erigifl ifleludiflg, ilie f!eese, swastika, er eef!federate flagl>, af!d whese 
dis13lay: 

I. 

2. 

Is reaseflalily likely te eause a substafltial disru13tiefl ef er material iflterferef!ee with seheel 
aetivities; er 

ls reaseflalily likely te iflterfere with the rights ef studeflts by deflyiflg them full aeeess te ilie 
serviees, aetivities, af!d e1313ertuflities effered by a seheel. 

'The display ofa noose on public property with the intent to intimidate may be a Class A Misdemeanor under Senate Bill 398 
(2021). 

"While commonly referred to as the "confederate flag," the official name of the prohibited flag is the Battle Flag of the Armies 
of Northern Virginia. 

'"School property" means any property under the control of the district. 

' "Education program" includes any program, service, school or activity sponsored by the district. 

RI0/12/20ISL All Students Belong - ACB 
1-2 



er in any distriet er seheel spensered prngram, serviee, seheel er aetivity that is funded in vmele er in 
part ay rnenies apprnpriated ay the Oregen Legislative Assernaly, eirnept where used in teaehing 
euHieulurn that is aligned te the Oregen State Standards. 

In responding to the use of any symbols of hate or ):>ias iri.ciden~. the district will use non-disciplinary 
remedial action whenever appropriate. 

The district prohibits retaliation against an individual because that persen has filed a eharge, testified, 
assisted er participated in an investigatien, prneeeding er hearing; and further prnhiaits anyene frern 

eeereing, intimidating, threat,~~~~-~~~~i~g with_Elil.~~~~~~~~~!'1,~~~g_l;;~~.!:1~.1!~!, 
und~r state and federal l€1W. ,mcl1v1d4~lia~r111,' .'rrP9,J'.ted~/nfQ.@!!~!9!!,thatthe11J..91:YJdl!!gJleheves 
isevidelI~~0'of'a violation of a st~te or'fedetal•la .. orre','/;;latfoiil 
~:. -.-·-~- • -'•--··- ---········-------.---•• --,· ·-.~--•·_,,. ,., - A>-.,, ~;:;;~.-• •• 5~.-~---' 

Nothing in this policy is intended to interfere with the lawful use of district facilities pursuant to a lease or 
license. 

The district will use administrative regulation ACB-AR - Bias Incident Complaint Procedure to process 
reports or complaints of bias incidents. 

END OF POLICY 

Legal Reference(s): 

ORS 659.850 
ORS 659.852 
OAR 581-002-0005 
OAR 581-022-2312 
OAR 581-022-23 70 
Tinkerv. Des Moines lndep. Cmty. Sch. Dist., 393 U.S. 503 (1969). 
Dariano v. Morgan Hill Unified Sch. Dist., 767 F.3d 764 (9th Cir. 2014). 
State v. Robertson, 293 Or. 402 (I 982). 



~~-
- sweet Home-

scHooL DISTRICT #55 

Code: ACB-AR 
Adopted: 1/11/2020 

Revision I st Reading: 2/14/2022 

Bias Incident Complaint Procedure 

The term "bias incident" is and "symbols of hate" are defined in policy. Persons impacted by a bias 
incident ~\lispf~x)'bf~~;8-°WR<?:J~~~~ll\iill be defined broadly to include individm1ls at viham an ineident 
was p~dn~ dire~edl&i ~~etecli]?y1!ih)'act as well as students in the larger school community likely to be 
impacted by the ac! ineident. a 

Step 1 : When a staff member learns of a potential bias incident, the staff member will prioritize the safety 
and well-being of all persons impacted and without unreasonable delay report the incident to 
the building or program administrator. 

Step 2: The administrator or designee shall acknowledge receipt of the complaint, reduce the complaint to 
writing, and investigate any complaint of a bias incident. Responding staff will recognize the 
experience of all persons impacted, acknowledge the impact, commit to taking immediate 
action, and prevent further harm against those persons impacted from taking place. Redirection 
procedures, if any, will include: 

• Edueatianal eampanents tliat addFess tlie histaFy and impaet sf hate; 
• PFaeedUFal eampanents ta ensUFe tlie safety, healing, and ageney 0fth0se impaeted ey hate; 
• Aeeauntaeility and tFansfeFmatian feF peaple was eause haFm; and 
• TFansfeFmatian ef the eanditians that peFpetuated the haFm. 

The administrator or designee must consider whether the behavior implicates other district 
policies or civil rights laws, and if so, respond accordingly. 

The administrator or designee will make a decision within IO days of receiving the complaint. 

All persons impacted will be provided with information relating to the investigation and the 
outcome of the investigation. At a minimum, the information provided must include: 

• That an investigatien has seen initiated; 

'The term "complainant" in this administrative regulation includes persons filing formal complaints and persons reporting bias 
incidents, regardless of whether the complainant is a victim. Similarly, the term "complaint" includes any report, information or 
complaint. 

Rl0/12/20 J SL Bias Incident Complaint Procedure - ACB-AR 
1-3 



• Whea the iavestigatiea has eeea e0H113leteEI; 
• The fiadiags ef the im•estigatiea aad the fiaal deteffiliaatiea eased ea these fiadiags; aad 
• Aetieas takea with the 13ersea er 13erseas whe eeH!Hlitted the haFassiag eehavier te reH!edy 

the eehavier aad 13revellt reeeeurreaee whea the aetieas relate direetly te a 13ersea 
iH113aeted ey the evellt. 

Step 3: If complainant or a respondent wishes to appeal the decision of the administrator or designee, the 
complainant or respondent may submit a written appeal to the superintendent within five 
school days after receipt of the administrator or designee's response to the complaint. 

The superintendent or designee shall acknowledge receipt of the appeal and may meet with all 
parties involved. The superintendent or designee will review the merits of the complaint and 
the administrator or designee' s decision. The superintendent or designee will respond in 
writing to the complainant within 10 school days. 

The superintendent or designee will ensure that the requirements in Steps 1 and 2 (redirection 
procedures, notice, etc.) are continued to be met through Step 3, as appropriate. 

Step 4: If the complainant or respondent is not satisfied with the decision of the superintendent or 
designee, a written appeal may be filed with the Board within five school days of receipt of the 
superintendent or designee's response to Step 3. The Board may decide to hear or deny the 
request for appeal at a Board meeting. The Board may use an executive session if the subject 
matter qualifies under Oregon law. If the Board decides to hear the appeal, the Board may 
meet with the concerned parties and their representative at the next regular or special Board 
meeting. The Board's decision will be final and will address each allegation in the complaint 
and contain reasons for the Board's decision. A copy of the Board's final decision shall be sent 
to the complainant in writing within 10 days of this meeting. 

The Board will ensure that the requirements in Steps 1 and 2 (redirection procedures, notice, 
etc.) are continued to be met through Step 4, as appropriate. 

Complaints can be filed with or communicated directly to the administrator or designee, in which case 
Step 1 will be skipped. Complaints against the administrator can be directed to the superintendent or 
designee and will begin at Step 3. Complaints against the superintendent or a Board member(s) can be 
directed to the Board and will begin at Step 4. If complaints begin later than Step 1, the individuals 
reviewing the complaint will ensure that all requirements are met. 

The complainant, if a person who resides in the district or a parent or guardian of a student who attends 
school in the district or a student, is not satisfied after exhausting local complaint procedures, the district 



fails to render a written decision within 30 days of submission of the complaint at any step or fails to 
resolve the complaint within 90 days of the initial filing of the complaint, may appealb the district's final 
decision to the Deputy Superintendent of Public Instruction under Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR) 
581-002-0001 - 581-002-0023. 

Complaints may also be filed directly with the U.S. Department of Education Office for Civil Rights.< 

District administration will develop and implement instructional materials to ensure that all school 
employees and staff are made aware of this procedure and related practices. The materials will include 
reporting procedures, educational processes, and possible consequences. 

When necessary, timelines may be adjusted by the district by communicating to all parties in writing. This 
communication must include a new timeline and an explanation of why the timeline must be adjusted. 

b An appeal must meet the criteria found in OAR 58 l-002-0005(I)(a). 

'Complaints must meet criteria as established by law. For more information, visit 
http://www.ed.gov/about/offices/list/ocr/complaintintro.html 

RI 0/12/20 I SL Bias Incident Complaint Procedure - A CB-AR 
3-3 



)~ 
SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Code: DH 
Adopted: 4/4/88 

Revised/Readopted: 12/14/98, 7/9/07, 9/9/13 
Orig Code: BP 6450 

Revision I st Reading: 2/14/2022 

B0Bded Empleyees aBd OffieersHf~~G6vet~g~ 

All Eiistfiet emj'lisyees feSflSHsiele fef funEis, fees, eash eslleetisas Sf im'eHtSf)' esatfsl will ee esaEieEi ts 
j'lfsteet the Eiistriet agaiast lsss ia an amsHHt EietefHliHeEi ey the BsUFEi anEi HflSH feesmmeaEiatisH sf the 
Eiistriet' s ageHt sf reesrEi. Ia esmj'llianee viith Oregsa sta!Htes anEi aEimiais!fative mies, the 
SHJ'lefiateaEieHt[, eHstsEiian sf fimEis aaEi sthef iaEiiviEiHals as EieemeEi aeeessUfy ey the BsarEi] will have 
iaEiiviEiHal fiEie!ity esaEi esYerage sr eqHiYaleHt erime esverage. The Eiistriet will fl9Y the esst sf sHeh 

END OF POLICY 

Legal Reference(s): 

ORS 328.441 
ORS 332.525 
OAR581-022-1720 

Bonded Employees and Officers - DH 
1-1 



5~ 
SCl·IOOI. ()!STRICT 

Code: EEA-8--~ 
Adopted: 4/4/88 

Readopted: 1/11/99 
Orig. Code(s): BP 7410 

Revision 1st Reading: 2/14/2022 

School Bus Scheduling aud Routing 

Btts FOtt!es, sehe,foles at'ld sto13s will ee de•,•elo13ed m1de, the di,eetiofl of the stt13e,viso, oftFaflSJ3ortatiofl. The 
J3HFJ3ose ofetts sehedttliflg afld FOtt!iRg will ee to aehie•,·e maidmttm sen·iee with a miRimttm fleet of buses eoHsisteHt 
with FeHde,iRg ,easeHaele eqttal se,viee to all stttdeR!s. 

Btts Fettles will fellow the most dime! FOads 13,aetieaele fe, etts t,avel to sen·e these stttdeHts eHtitled to 
tFaHs13ertatioH ser,•iee. '.Vhe,e aH alternate FOHte may ee seleeted witheH! saeFifiee of effieieHe)' o• eeoHomy, 
13,efe,eRee will ee givefl to that FOHte seF¥iHg the la,gest HHmee, efstHdeAts most dirnetly. BHs FOH!es will Hot 
iHelHde 13Fivate FOads. WheH ,eads eeoeme tee feHgh, mHddy Of ha;!afdeHs, the FOH!e will ee diseoHtiHHed HHtil the 
siruatieH is eoffeeted. ReHte ei,teRsioAs will be HO! mofe thaR I\~ miles 13e, stHdeH!. l'le seheol eHs will ste13 to 13iek 
HJ3 er let off 13asseAgefs ei,ee13t at fegHlaf desigHated sto13s. 

ReH!es will be desigHed to elimiHate as maA)' tHFH aFOHHd 13eiA!s as 13essiele, aHd to em13le)' as Hearly as 13,aetieable 
the fHII ean-yiHg ea13aeit)' fef eaeh eHs FOHte. Ne eus will ee eYefleaded. l'lew FOUies will ee established OHi)' wheH 
full ea13aeit)' of buses OH ei,istiRg feutes has beeH feaehed Of is immiAefl!. 

Autheri;!ed OHS sto13s will be leeated at eeHveHieH! iHter,•als iH 13laees whefe stHdeHts may eeafd aHd get off, oFOss 
highways aHd await affiYal efeuses with the utmost safety 13efmitted B)' highway eeHditieHs. 

The Humber of OHS sto13s OH eaeh FOHte will ee limited so as to eHaele buses to make the FIIH iA reasoAaele time. 

IHsofa, as ed11eatieRal req11iremeH!s 13eFH'lit, seheol sehed11les will ee adj11sted to allow maidm11m 11tili;!a!ieH of eaeh 
e11s iH the s:,·stem ey alternatiAg elemeR!af)' aHd seoeRdaf)' tfi13s with the same fleet of eHses. 

1-2 



r----··········---·-···, --·----··-·--·--··-·-·--------···•---· • ......... · ······-··-·-···· --- ·- ···-·-----·---------·--· ----·-· -·--- ;] 
~'- _ , Bµs. wuti11g \Vi.11 be thlcl re~p9n.~ibµi.t)':,of; the tr.@SJ)Q_i:tl\:ti_o11. sup<:_rvisor ,_ Q! gel~g!lte4.re11rese11~_a.!iY~, 

~!h th~- administratq(s assis~~<:.l 

F~•:]toufe'conciITidns • :will be-reviewed r'6lliit:rS1¥l 

S, ... -.' .. ·••· -B,"oute;?:wiJUbenfannedi.to-eiisure,th~le~tf P.ossil>Ie ~t oftime ela11sing ·from frrst.pi:c!GuB'.'td -7~ii~lrF,~t\ffilfu~~fffa'f~~~l®n§.@~lilffllt~{fil'~&r · · · ,.,., _ _, ____ ~- , ... , ~ 

[o~~:®r:~imP6i\\eii[s~s\ilil@e'.prwicl~d~~A~nl~M'd~iltfmtist;rtbfsfillidJ 

[fc~~lii. }i!).-fhts i!lillY,;],eifriPjfetreg]h:_e,ctly_jr9in:'./in~fustQjpoth_(~E\Yhlie~~-(:_!Ilg trari§RQ.rted, to .8.\lQ ¥..Qni 
tclr61/t 

END OF POLICY 

Legal Reference(s): 

ORS 332.405 

OAR 581-053 

2-2 



5~ 
SCIIOOI. l)JSTRIC":T 

Code: GBA-AR 
Adopted: 

NEW POLICY: 2/14/2022 

'g$-Q~-t~wH?/¥1c;~ID;~~tS;\YJJl1Kchl'cfe:t-+!'c\m'i'S'§gi'"·.t9t1ntill,iJlll.lpl.and•l!J:l~~Jl~Ci<}],ql\aJifi,q~tj.911§ 
~~,6'~itidn,'!$J3'13'!'1 o'sYffi'ibs:'wfI ·, '"'iHi\'[ftli:61distnct:s;:·::mt··1"iito/=a~ 

lffll'iir-ifl~,t~:fJr ~r~~f~i:l~t1J8biHtimt;lwrm1• 
. fi_,~"_.fi"·-11_.""t~~f''i!i"!·'.,f,·; _ .. :1_,w~/:;l!,t,'!ii.l)l\ii;l 1_ -tim1

,,.,~~---4'11i_''''t''-ib,1i'~J;;:l 
, ~e':C~.\:':l tca ),OilJ:Q_ •e IgL_;..:- _,:x/!lli!luuit!Ol). O.O,u1eljfrj:qfil'_g~g:,ffia[ertals, 

~!lill.!!!fon®:~l!Fl;5 

~te1JJ:. ___ --';~~f~~1Hl:~•l;~yi~w'of·~~-~ri,IJ!lc~fJ~~-~~-~~\li~1.r~SC/tirc.e· 4l~ist9,ri ~ll~~,t\l~1:i~f~-;-----7 
r:i;1~~~rl')Conng_gu1de1basft01Wtlie']I[llllinllin'and any speciatquahficatiol).S'hsted;mtht; 
L-,P-~---g· 

r..s.ee:OregonRevis'edStatute:(ORS),408.23:S! 

b §~]Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 408.225~cl_,Q~.jQ.@.Qj'_Q)j definition§ ofveteranl]i~<!ii'aNicj_'x~!erait. 

~S.ee[Ve_tjfication of Veteran's Preferenc{(QAR.$39,00/l~Q/f.~l Ag ~PP.li~ilJltfl_!!_@ing_yeter:_,,Il'.~-gr disabled_y~\~r~:~ 
preferenco,jwill_submit ~ CCJ)?Y of their Certificate of Release or Discharge from Active Duty(DD Form 214 or 215' f' 

~}1l~1l1~~~1t1~11~~;~~~~~1ftl~~;~~;~~!::~tL,l~~fi~1t~;~~;~f~~~~~~~ ~ -•"'/:~: 
R,;Jl_,c.,1-~~tnJ;~f v~:~~lsl'"6ft~1;;;}t,tµpd.,,lfi'l,~~J~.~t!:l1[2,d .. , ' ;,)~gi:mt~l)_,,t1(~tlicl~~;~·osrds~tft\i_;r,n,tlil!l~~,li~i!tf~lf~ f~~~.

1
~,\-.;·~~W;,l~)re ~~yrseP,ara ~-.9~~-J'le;. OllS;llO ·'J!_eF; an-:'"~-LJ!.Y§.c~_,-~f:LY,SU ffilSSlO!!,!L 

ffiezcei:filicat10n. 

'If the district chooses not to use a scored system the law requires that the district give special consideration in the district's 
hiring decision to veterans and disabled veterans and the district will need to be able to demonstrate the method used for 
providing special consideration. ORS 408.230(2)(c). 

1-2 



:Step·2: 

Elifu'f~lfutii)aiiit 

W,'v'eteraiitdr;arsabl~ct\vet<:rimTs'~rico.,.. " 
t;ffl~«a~~%;&¢'(~/je'.~p6J{&~tl~n o , . 

2-2 



SCHOOL DtSTRlCH55 

Code: GBL 
Adopted: 12/13/93 

Revised/Readopted: 8/10/98, 9/8/03, 11/14/05, 
7/13/2020 

Orig Code: BP 3160 
Revision 1st Reading: 2/14/2022 

Personnel Records 

An official personnel file will be established for each person employed by the district. Personnel files will 
be maintained in a central location. 

All records containing employee medical condition information such as workers' compensation reports 
and release or permission to return to work forms will be kept confidential, in a separate file from 
personnel records. Such records will be released only in accordance with the requirements of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act or other applicable law. 

The superintendent will be responsible for establishing procedures regarding the control, use, safety and 
maintenance of all personnel records. Employees will be given a copy of evaluations, complaints and 
written disciplinary actions placed in their personnel file. All charges resulting in disciplinary action shall 
be considered a permanent part of a teacher's personnel file and shall not be removed for any reason. 
Employees may submit a written response to any materials placed in their personnel file. 

Except as provided below, or required by law, district employees' personnel records will be available for 
use and inspection only by the following: 

I. The individual employee. An employee may arrange with the personnel office to inspect the 
contents of their personnel file on any day the personnel office is open for business; 

2. Others designated by the employee in writing may arrange to inspect the contents of the 
employee's personnel file in the same manner described above; 

3. The comptroller or auditor, when such inspection is pertinent to carrying out their respective duties, 
or as otherwise specifically authorized by the Board. Information so obtained will be kept 
confidential. No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection; 

4. A Board member when specifically authorized by the Board. Information will be kept confidential. 
No files will be removed from their central location for personal inspection; 

5. The superintendent and members of the central administrative staff designated by the 
superintendent; 

6. District administrators and supervisors who currently or prospectively supervise the employee; 

7. Employees of the personnel office; 

8. Attorneys for the district or the district's designated representative on matters of district business; 

9. 

Personnel Records * - GBL 
1-2 



hast&' ;,!i'/is;lfa'd an:ieffi.~1o foeiittt~1a:iTlf ··· '· ' · r:a, ·'&son;w!ib~f s~ffie~b ·eEfKr:m~,.r~"'\1~~f'~rtornn~ 
mm1~o~ii,~'ifu\'"¥Nril'mirg;"~U~~1mf . -~~;;as ~~;~t~<ll~'.tit&~ffim~tf;;;!t t~o;· -~· ~ .. = .. ;,l;i...,.. ___ . ....~__,__-.J.:.....u,, .................... -.."1 "' ,.__'Jc·'--· -~.,,-~._ • ..,._ff' 
Revises Statute (ORS1339.388(8)(c) are confidential and are not public records as defined in ORS 
192.311. The district may use the record as a basis for providing the information required to be 
disclosed about an employee under ORS 339.378(1); 

10. Upon request from a Jaw enforcement agency, the Oregon Department of Human Services, the 
Teacher Standards and Practices Commission, or the Oregon Department of Education, in 
conducting an investigation related to suspected abuse or suspected sexual conduct, to the extent 
allowable by state and federal law, including laws protecting a person from self-incrimination. 

11. 

The superintendent may permit persons other than those specified above to use and to inspect personnel 
records when, in their opinion, the person requesting access has a legitimate official purpose. The 
superintendent will determine in each case, the appropriateness and extent of such access. 

Release of personnel records to parties other than those listed above, will be in line with the Board policy 
KBA - Public Records. 

END OF POLICY 

Legal Reference(s): 

ORS 342.850 
ORS 652.750 

ORS 342.143 
SB 755 (2005) 

OSEA v. Lake County School District, Case No. C-202-83, 8 PECBR 7837 (1985); rev'd, 81 Or App 623 (1986); order on 
remand, 9 PECBR 950 I ( I 987); aff' d, 93 Or App 48 I (I 988). 

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. Sections 12101-12213; 29 CFR Part 1630 (2000); 28 CFR Part 35 (2000). 

Personnel Records * - GBL 
2-2 



--~~ =-=--
-sweet Home-

scHooL DISTRICT#55 

Code: 
Adopted: 

Revised/Readopted: 
DELETE POLICY 

Biseles11Fe ef lnfeFm11tien 

GBLA 
11/14/05 

1/10/11, 7/13/20 

A11thoriz0es sistriet offieials ma)' siselose i11fermatio11 abe1i! a fermer em13le)'ee'sjeb 13etfarma11ee tea 13res13eetive 
em13leyer. Distriet effieials are imm1111e frem ei'.·il liability fer sueh siselesures 1111ser the fellewiAg ee11sitie11s: 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

The siselesure ef i11fermatie11 regarsi11g the fermer em13leyee' s j eb 13erferma11ee is u13e11 request ef!he 
13res13eefr,•e em13leyer er the fermer em13le)'ee. This siselesure is 13resumes te be i11 gees faith. Presum13tieA ef 
goes faith is rebu!!es by shewi11g the i11fermatie11 e!iselesee! was: 

a. 
b. 
e. 
el. 

Deliberately misleae!i11g; 
Re11e!eree! with malieieus 1311r13ese; er 
Vielatee! eh·il right efthe farmer em13le)'ee 13reteetee! u11e!er Orege11 Re•lisee! Statute (ORS) 659 er 

ORS 659A. 

Reeere!s ereatee! 1311rsua11t te ORS 339.388(8)(e) are eo11fie!e11tial a11e! are 11ot 13ublie reeere!s as e!efi11ee! iA 
ORS 192.311. The e!istriet may use the reeors as a basis fer 13re,•ie!i11g the i11fermatio11 requires te be e!iselosee! 
about a11 em13loyee u11e!er ORS 339.378(1); 

The e!iselesure is a result ef a request frem law e11fereeme11t, Orego11 De13artme11t ef I luma11 Ser.•iees, 
Teaeher Sta11e!are!s a11e! Praetiees Cemmissie11, or the OregeA De13artme11t ef Be!ueatioA iA ee11e!uetiflg aA 
i11vestigatiofl relatee! to sus13eetee! abuse or sus13eetee! seimal ee11e!uet to the eilte11t allowable by state a11e! 
fee!eral law, iflelue!iAg laws 13roteeti11g a 13ersefl frnm self i11erimiflatieA; 

No later tha11 2() e!ays after reeeivi11g a request Ufle!er ORS 3 39.3 74 ( I )(b, the e!istriet, if it has er has hae! a11 
em13loyme11t relatioflshi13 with the a13131iea11t shall e!iselese the i11fermatiefl requestee! fil!D OF POLICY 

Or. A!!er11ey Ge11eral's Publie Reeore!s a11e! Meetiflgs Maflual. 

Legal Referenee(s), 

ORS 39.178 
ORS 339.HG 339.374 
ORS 339.378 
ORS 339.388 
ORS Chapter 659 
ORS Chapter 659A 

Disclosure oflnformation - GBLA 
1-1 



Code: 
Adopted: 

Revised/Readopted: 

SCHOOL DISTRICT #55 

GCBDA/GDBDA-AR (1) 
8/10/98 

9/13/04, 12/10/07, 12/8/08, 
9/14/09 
3/8/10, 5/10/10, 9/9/13, 1/13/14, 
8/14/17, 1/11/2021 

Federal Family and l\'ledieal Lew,,e,£8tate Family l\<ledieal Leave 

Coverage 

The federal Family and Medical Leave Act (FMLA) applies to districts with 50 or more employees within 
75 miles of the employee's work site, based on employment during each working day during any of the 20 
or more workweeks in the calendar year in which the leave is to be taken, or in the calendar year preceding 
the year in which the leave is to be taken. The 50 employee test does not apply to educational institutions 
for determining employee eligibility. 

The Oregon Family Leave Act (OFLA) and the Oregon Military Family Leave Act (OMFLA) applies to 
districts that employ 25 or more part-time or full-time employees in Oregon, based on employment during 
each working day during any of the 20 or more workweeks in the calendar year in which the leave is to be 
taken, or in the calendar year immediately preceding the year in which the leave is to be taken. 

Employee Eligibility 

FMLA applies to employees who have worked for the district for at least 12 months (not necessarily 
consecutive) and worked for at least 1,250 hours during the 12-month period immediately preceding the 
start of the leave. 

An employee who has previously qualified for and has taken some portion ofFMLA leave may request 
additional FMLA leave within the same leave year. In such instances, the employee need not requalify as 
an eligible employee, if the additional leave applied for is in the same leave year and for the same 
condition. 

OFLA applies to employees who work an average of 25 hours or more per week during the 180 calendar 
days or more immediately prior to the first day of the start of the requested leave. 1 For parental leave 
purposes, an employee becomes eligible upon completing at least 180 days immediately preceding the date 
on which the parental leave begins. There is no minimum average number of hours worked per week when 
determining employee eligibility for parental leave. 

An employee of a covered employer is eligible to take leave for purposes of OFLA during a perioclof tiine 
covered by a public health emergency except: 

1 The requirements ofOFLA do not apply to any employer offering eligible employees a nondiscriminatory cafeteria plan, as 
defined by section 125 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, which provides as one of its options employee leave at least as 
generous as the leave required by OFLA. 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

1-15 



1. An employee who worked for the covered employer for fewer than 30 days immediately before the 
date on which the family leave would commence; or 

2. An employee who worked for the covered employer for an average of fewer than 25 hours per week 
in the 3 0 days immediately before the elate on vvhic)J, tli~Jalllily leave would comme11ce. 

An .employee .ofacovered ~mployerjs_eligi~!i tCltak~!~~veforpurposes o{QFLA if the employee: 

1. Separates from employment with the covered employer, irrespective of any reason: 
....... .,. ····- .... --· . -

a. Is eligible to take leave OFLA at the time the employee separates; and 
b. Is reemployed)y the covered ernploye~ withi11J80_daysof separation from employment; or 

2. Is eligibletotake OFLAleave: 
.. ....•...• .......•. .. ------------- .. ,. .. _, 

a. At the beginning of a temporary cessation of scheduled hours of 180 days or less; and . 
b. R,etunis to work at the end of the temporary cessation of scheduled hours of 180 days. or less. 

Any OFLA leave taken by the employee within any one-year period continues to count against the length 
of time ofOFLA leave the employee is entitled. The amount of time that an employee is deemed to have 
worked for a covered employer prior to a break in service due to a separation from employment or _a 
temporary cessation of scheduled hours shall be restored to the employee when the employee is, 
reemployed by the employer within 180 days of separation from employment or when the employee 
returns to vvork at the end of the temporl:lILC~ssa!iCJ11 of_ sche::duled hours of 180 days or less. 

An employee who has previously qualified for and has taken some portion of OFLA leave, may request 
additional OFLA leave within the same leave year. In such instances, the employee must requalify as an 
eligible employee for each additional leave requested unless one of the following exceptions apply: 

3. A female employee who has taken 12 weeks of pregnancy disability leave need not requalify leave 
in the same leave year for any other purpose; 

4. An employee who has taken 12 weeks of parental leave need not requalify to take an additional 12 
weeks in the same leave year for sick child leave; and 

5. An employee granted leave for a serious health condition for the employee or a family member need 
not requalify if additional leave is taken in this leave year for the same reason. 

OMFLA applies to employees who work an average of at least 20 hours per week. There is no minimum 
number of days worked when determining employee eligibility for OMFLA. 

In determining if an employee has been employed for the preceding 180 calendar days, when applicable, 
the employer must consider days, e.g., paid or unpaid, an employee is maintained on payroll for any part 
of a work week. Full-time public school teachers who have been maintained on payroll by a district for 
180 consecutive calendar days are thereafter deemed to have been employed for an average of at least 25 
hours per week during the 180 days immediately preceding the start date of the OFLA leave. This 
provision is eligible for rebuttal if for example, the employee was on a nonpaid sabbatical. 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

2-15 



In determining average workweek, the employer must count the actual hours worked using the Fair Labor 
Standards Act (FLSA) guidelines. 

Qualifying Reason 

Eligible employees may access FMLA leave for the following reasons: 

6. Serious health condition of the employee or the employee's covered family member: 

a. Inpatient care; 
b. Continuing treatment; 
c. Chronic conditions; 
d. Permanent, long-term or terminal conditions; 
e. Multiple treatments; 
f. Pregnancy and prenatal care. 

7. Parental leave2 (separate from eligible leave as a result of a child's serious health condition): 

a. Bonding with and the care for the employee's newborn (within 12 months following birth); 
b. Bonding with and the care for a newly adopted or newly placed foster child under the age of 

18 (within 12 months of placement); 
c. Care for a newly adopted or newly placed foster child over 18 years of age who is incapable of 

self-care because of a physical or mental impairment (within 12 months of placement); 
d. Time to effectuate the legal process required for placement of a foster child or the adoption of 

a child. 

8. Military Caregiver Leave: leave for the care for spouse, son, daughter or next-of-kin who is a 
covered servicemember/veteran with a serious injury or illness; 

9. Qualifying Exigency Leave: leave arising out of the foreign deployment of the employee's spouse, 
son, daughter or parent. 

Eligible employees may access OFLA for the following reasons: 

1. Serious health condition of the employee or the employee's covered family member: 

a. Inpatient care; 
b. Continuing treatment; 
c. Chronic conditions; 
d. Permanent, long-term or terminal conditions; 
e. Multiple treatments; 
f. Pregnancy and prenatal care. 

2. Parental leave (separate from eligible leave as a result of the child's serious health condition): 

a. Bonding with and the care for the employee's newborn (within 12 months following birth); 

2 Parental leave must be taken in one continuous block of time within 12 months of the triggering event. 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

3-15 



b. Bonding with and the care for a newly adopted or newly placed foster child under the age of 
18 (within 12 months of placement); 

c. Care for a newly adopted or newly placed foster child over 18 years of age who is incapable of 
self-care because of a physical or mental impairment (within 12 months of placement); 

d. Time to effectuate the legal process required for placement of a foster child or the adoption of 
a child. 

3. Sick Child Leave: leave for non-serious health conditions of the employee's child. For OFLA, sick 
child leave includes absence to care for an employee's child whose school or child care provider has 
been closed3 in conjunction with a statewide public health emergency declared by a public health 
official.4 

4. Bereavement Leave: leave related to the death of a covered family member. 5 

5. Eligible employees may access OMFLA for the purpose of spending time with a spouse or same
gender domestic partner who is in the military and has been notified of an impending call or order to 
active duty, or who has been deployed during a period of military conflict. 

6. The eligibility of an employee who takes multiple leaves for different qualified reasons during the 
same district designated leave period may be reconfirmed at the start of each qualified leave 
requested. 

Definitions 

1. Family member: 

a. For the purposes of FMLA, "family member" means: 

(I) Spouse6; 
(2) Parent; 
(3) Child; or 
( 4) Persons who are "in loco parentis". 

3 "Closure" for the purpose of sick child leave during a statewide public health emergency declared by a public health official 
means a closure that is ongoing, intermittent, or recurring and restricts physical access to the child's school or child care 
provider. OAR 839-009-0210(4). 

4 The district may request verification of the need for sick child leave due to a closure during a statewide emergency. 
Verification may include: 
I. The name of the child being cared for; 
2. The name of the school or child care provider that has closed or become unavailable; and 
3. A statement from the employee that no other family member of the child is willing and able to care for the child. 
With the care of a child older than 14, a statement that special circumstances exist requiring the employee to provide care to the 
child during daylight hours. 

5 Bereavement leave under OFLA must be completed within 60 days of when the employee received notice of the death. 

6 "Spouse" means individuals in a marriage, including "common law" marriage and same-sex marriage. For OFLA, spouse also 
includes same-sex individuals with a Certificate of Registered Domestic Partnership. 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

4-15 



b. For the purposes of OFLA, "family member" means: 

(I) Spouse; 
(2) Registered, same-gender domestic partner; 
(3) Parent; 
( 4) Parent-in-law; 
(5) Parent of employee's registered, same-gender domestic partner; 
(6) Child; 
(7) Child of employee's registered, same-gender domestic partner; 
(8) Grandchild; 
(9) Grandparent; or 
(10) Persons who are "in loco parentis". 

2. Child: 

a. For the purposes of FMLA, "child" means a biological, adopted or foster child, a stepchild, a 
legal ward or a child of a person standing "in loco parentis", who is either under the age of 18, 
or who is 18 years of age or older and who is incapable of self-care because of a physical or 
mental impairment. 

b. For the purposes of Military Caregiver Leave and Qualifying Exigency Leave under FMLA, 
"child" means the employee's son or daughter on covered active duty regardless of that child's 
age. 

c. For the purposes ofOFLA, "child" means a biological, adopted, foster child or stepchild of the 
employee, the child of the employee's same-gender domestic partner, or a child with whom the 
employee is or was in a relationship of"in loco parentis". 

d. For the purposes of parental and sick child leave under OFLA, the child must be under the age 
of 18 or an adult dependent child substantially limited by a physical or mental impairment. 

3. In loco parentis: 

a. For the purposes of FMLA, "in loco parentis" means persons with day-to-day responsibility to 
care for and financially support a child, or, in the case of an employee, who had such 
responsibility for the employee when the employee was a child. A biological or legal 
relationship is not necessary. 

b. For the purposes of OFLA, "in loco parentis" means person in the place of the parent having 
financial or day-to-day responsibility for the care of a child. A legal or biological relationship 
is not required. 

4. Next of kin: 

For the purposes ofFMLA and Military Caregiver Leave under FMLA, "next of kin" means the 
nearest blood relative other than the servicemember's spouse, parent, son or daughter in the 
following order of priority (unless otherwise designated in writing by the servicemember): 

a. Blood relatives who have been granted legal custody of the servicemember by court decree or 
statutory provisions; 

b. Brothers or sisters; 
c. Grandparents; 
d. Aunts and uncles; and 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

5-15 



e. First cousins. 

5. Covered servicemembers: 

For the purposes of Military Caregiver Leave under FMLA, "covered servicemember" means a 
current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or Reserves, who is 
receiving medical treatment, recuperation or therapy, or is in outpatient status, or is on the temporary 
disability retire list for a serious injury or illness. 

6. Covered veteran: 

For the purposes of Military Caregiver Leave under FMLA, "covered veteran" means a veteran who 
is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy for a serious injury or illness provided they 
were: 

a. A member of the Armed Forces (including a member of the National Guard or Reserves); 
b. Discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable; and 
c. Discharged within the five-year period before the eligible employee first takes FMLA, 

Military Caregiver Leave. 

7. Public health emergency: 

For OFLA a public health emergency means; 

a. A public health emergency declared underORS 433A4L .. 
b. An emergency declared under ORS 401.165 if related to a public health emergency as defined 

in ORS 433,442. 

Leave Period 

For the purposes of calculating an employee's leave period, the district will use a "rolling" 12-month 
period measured backward from the date the employee uses any family and medical leave. The same 
method for calculating the 12-month period for FMLA and OFLA leave entitlement shall be used for all 
employees. However, in all instances, the leave period for the purposes of OMFLA and Military Caregiver 
Leave under FMLA shall be dependent on the start of any such leave regardless of the district's designated 
12-month leave period described above. 

Leave Duration 

For the purposes of FMLA, an eligible employee is generally entitled to a total of 12 weeks of qualified 
leave during the district's designated leave period7• Spouses who work for the district may be limited to a 
combined 12 weeks ofFMLA leave during the district's designated leave period when the purpose of the 
leave is for the birth of a child or to care for a child after birth, placement of an adopted or foster child or 

7 An eligible employee taking Military Caregiver Leave under FMLA is entitled to up to 26 weeks of leave in the 12-month 
period beginning with the first day of such leave and regardless of any FMLA leave taken previously during the district's leave 
period. However, once the 12-month period begins for the purposes of Military Caregiver Leave under FMLA, any subsequent 
FMLA qualified leave, regardless of reason for such leave, will count toward the employee's 26-week entitlement under 
Military Caregiver Leave under FMLA. 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

6-15 



the care for an adopted or foster child after placement, or to care for the employee's parent's serious 
medical condition. Except in specific and unique instances, all qualified leave under FMLA counts toward 
an employee's leave entitlement within the district's designated leave period. 

For the purposes of OFLA, an eligible employee is generally entitled to a total of 12 weeks of qualified 
leave during the district's designated leave period. However, a woman is entitled to an additional, full 12 
weeks of parental leave during the district's designated leave period following the birth ofa child 
regardless of how much OFLA qualified leave she has taken prior to the birth of such child during the 
district's designated leave period. Likewise, an employee who uses the full 12 weeks of parental leave 
during the district designated leave period, will be entitled to an additional 12 weeks of sick child leave 
under OFLA during the district's designated leave period for the purpose of caring for a child(ren) with a 
non-serious health condition requiring home care. 8 Unlike FMLA, OFLA does not combine the leave 
entitlement for spouses working for the district. However, under OFLA, family members who work for the 
district may be restricted from taking concurrent OFLA qualified leave.9 

For the purposes of OMFLA, an eligible employee is entitled to 14 days ofleave per call or order to active 
duty or notification of a leave from deployment. When an employee also meets the eligibility requirements 
ofOFLA, the duration of the OMFLA leave counts toward that employee's leave entitlement during the 
district's designated leave period. 

Except as otherwise noted above, qualified leave under FMLA and OFLA for an eligible employee will 
run concurrently during the district's designated leave period. 

For the purpose of tracking the number of leave hours an eligible employee is entitled and/or has used 
during each week of the employee's leave, leave entitlement is calculated by multiplying the number of 
hours the eligible employee normally works per week by 1210

. If an employee's schedule varies from 
week-to-week, a weekly average of the hours worked over the 12 weeks worked prior to the beginning of 
the leave period shall be used for calculating the employee's normal workweek' 1• If an employee takes 
intermittent or reduced work schedule leave, only the actual number of hours of leave taken may be 
counted toward the 12 weeks ofleave to which the employee is entitled. 

Intermittent Leave 

With the exception of parental leave which must be taken in one continuous block of time, an eligible 
employee is permitted under FMLA and OFLA to take intermittent leave for any qualifying reason. 

8 Sick child leave under OFLA need not be provided if another family member, including a noncustodial biological parent, is 
willing and able to care for the child. 

9 Exceptions to the ability to require family members from taking OFLA qualified leave at different times are when 1) employee 
is caring for the other employee who has a serious medical condition; 2) one employee is caring for a child with a serious 
medical condition when the other employee is suffering a serious medical condition; 3) each family member is suffering a 
serious medical condition; 4) each family member wants to take Bereavement Leave under OFLA; and 5) the employer allows 
the family members to take concurrent leave. 

'° For example, an employee normally employed to work 30 hours per week is entitled to 12 times 30 hours, or a total of 360 
hours ofleave. 

11 For example, an employee working an average of25 hours per week is entitled to 12 times 25 hours, or a total of300 hours of 
leave. 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

7-15 



Intermittent leave is taken in multiple blocks of time (i.e., hours, days, weeks, etc.) rather than in one 
continuous block of time and/or requires a modified or reduced work schedule. For OFLA this includes 
but not limited to sick child leave taken requiring an altered or reduced work schedule because the 
intermittent or recurring closure of a child's school or child care provider due to a statewide public health 
emergency declared by a public health official. 

When an employee is eligible for OFLA leave, but not FMLA leave, the employer: 

I. May allow an exempt employee, as defined by state and federal law, with accrued paid time off to 
take OFLA leave in blocks of less than a full day; but 

2. May not reduce the salary of an employee who is taking intermittent leave when they do not have 
accrued paid leave available. To do so would result in the loss of exemption under state law. 

An employee's FMLA and/or OFLA intermittent leave time is determined by calculating the difference 
between the employee's normal work schedule and the number of hours the employee actually works 
during the leave period. The result of such calculation is credited against the eligible employee's leave 
entitlement. 

Holidays or days in which the district is not in operation, are not counted against the eligible employee's 
intermittent OFLA leave period unless the employee was scheduled and expected to work on any such 
day. 

Alternate Work Assignment 

The district may transfer an employee recovering from a serious health condition to an alternate position 
which accommodates the serious health condition provided: 

1. The employee accepts the position voluntarily and without coercion; 

2. The transfer is temporary, lasts no longer than necessary and has equivalent pay and benefits; 

3. The transfer is compliant with any applicable collective bargaining agreement; 

4. The transfer is compliant with state and federal law, including but not limited to the protections 
provided for in FMLA and/or OFLA; and 

5. The transfer is not used to discourage the employee from taking FMLA and/or OFLA leave for a 
serious health condition or to create a hardship for the employee. 

The district may transfer an eligible employee who is on a foreseeable intermittent FMLA and/or OFLA 
leave to another position with the same or different duties to accommodate the leave, provided: 

I. The employee accepts the transfer position voluntarily and without coercion; 

2. The transfer is temporary, lasts no longer than necessary and has equivalent pay and benefits; 

· 3. The transfer is compliant with any applicable collective bargaining agreements; 

CR/06/20 [ RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

8-15 



4. The transfer is compliant with state and federal law, including but not limited to the protections 
provided for in FMLA and/or OFLA; 

5. The transfer to an alternate position is used only when there is no other reasonable option available 
that would allow the employee to use intermittent leave or reduced work schedule; and 

6. The transfer is not used to discourage the employee from taking intermittent or reduced work 
schedule leave, or to create a hardship for the employee. 

If an eligible employee is transferred to an alternative position, and as a result the employee works fewer 
hours than the employee was working in the original position, the employee's FMLA and/or OFLA leave 
time is determined by calculating the difference between the employee's normal work schedule and the 
number of hours the employee actually works during the leave period. The result of such calculation is 
credited against the eligible employee's leave entitlement. 

When an employee is transferred to alternate position as described above but such transfer does not result 
in a reduced schedule, time worked in any such alternate position shall not be considered for the purpose 
of FMLA and/or OFLA leave. An employee working in an alternate position retains the right to return to 
the employee's original position unless all FMLA and/or OFLA leave taken in that leave year plus the 
period of time worked in the alternate position exceeds 12 weeks. 

Special Rules for School Employees 

For the purposes of FMLA, "seli.ool instructional employee" means those whose principal function is to 
teach and instruct students in a class, a small group or an individual settinglemeat. Athletic coaches, 
driving instructors and special education assistants, such as interpreters for the hearing impaired, are 
included in this definition. This definition does not apply to teacher assistants or aides who do not have as 
their principal job actual teaching or instructing, counselors, psychologist, curriculum specialists, cafeteria 
workers, maintenance workers or bus drivers. 

For the purposes of OFLA, "school employee" means employees employed principally as instructors in 
public kindergartens, elementary schools, secondary schools or education service districts. 

FMLA and/or OFLA leave that is taken for a period that ends with the school year and begins with the 
next semester is considered consecutive rather than intermittent. In any such situation, the eligible school 
employee will receive any benefits during the break period that employees would normally receive if they 
had been working at the end of the school year. 

1. Foreseeable Intermittent Leave Exceeding 20 Percent of Working Days 

When the qualified leave is foreseeable, will encompass more than 20 percent of the eligible school 
employee's regular work schedule during the leave period, and the purpose of such leave is to care 
for a family member with a serious medical condition, for a servicemember with a serious medical 
condition or because of the employee's own serious medical condition, the district may require the 
eligible school employee to: 

a. Take leave for a period or periods of a particular duration, not greater than the duration of the 
planned treatment; or 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

9-15 



b. Temporarily transfer the eligible school employee to an alternate position for which the 
employee is qualified, which has equivalent pay and benefits and which better accommodates 
recurring periods ofleave than the employee's original position. 

2. Limitation on Leave Near the End of the School Year 

When an eligible school employee requests leave near the end of the school year, the district may 
require the following: 

a. When the qualified leave begins more than five weeks before the end of the school year: 

(1) For the purposes ofFMLA leave, the eligible school employee may be required to 
continue taking leave until the end of the school year provided: 

(a) The leave will last at least three weeks; and 
(b) The employee would return to work during the three-week period before the end of 

the term. 

(2) For the purposes of OFLA leave, if the reason for the leave is because of the eligible 
school employee's own serious health condition, the eligible school employee may be 
required to remain in leave until the end of the school year, provided: 

(a) The leave will last at least three weeks; and 
(b) The employee's return to work would occur within three weeks of the end of the 

school year. 

b. For the purposes ofFMLA and/or OFLA leave, when the qualified leave begins within five 
weeks of the end of the school year and the purpose of such leave is parental leave, for the 
serious health condition of a family member or for the serious health condition of a 
servicemember, the eligible school employee may be required to remain on leave until the end 
of the school year provided: 

( 1) The leave will last more than two weeks; and 
(2) The employee would return to work during the two-week period before the end of the 

school year. 

c. For the purposes of FMLA and/or OFLA leave, when the qualified leave begins within three 
weeks of the end of the school year and the purpose of such leave is parental leave, for the 
serious health condition of a family member or for the serious health condition of a 
servicemember, the eligible school employee may be required to remain on leave until the end 
of the school year provided the length of the leave will last more than five working days. 

If the district requires an eligible school employee to remain on leave until the end of the 
school year as described above, additional leave required by the employer until the end of the 
school year shall not count against the eligible school employee's leave entitlement. 

Paid/Unpaid Leave 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

10-15 



FMLA and OFLA do not require the district to pay an eligible employee who is on a qualified leave. 
Subject to any related provisions in any applicable collective bargaining agreement, the district requires 
the eligible employee to use any available accrued sick leave, vacation or personal leave days ( or other 
available paid time established by Board policy(ies) and/or collective bargaining agreement) in the order 
specified by the district and before taking FMLA and/or OFLA leave without pay during the leave period. 

The district will notify the eligible employee that the requested leave has been designated as FMLA and/or 
OFLA leave and, if required by the district, that available accrued paid leave shall be used during the leave 
period. In the event the district is aware of an OFLA or FMLA qualifying exigency, the district shall notify 
the eligible employee of its intent to designate the leave as such regardless of whether a request has been 
made by the eligible employee. Such notification will be given to the eligible employee prior to the 
commencement of the leave or within two working days of the employee's notice ofan unanticipated or 
emergency leave, whichever is sooner. 

When the district does not have sufficient information to make a determination of whether the leave 
.qualifies as FMLA or OFLA leave, the district will provide the required notice promptly when the 
information is available but no later than two working days after the district has received the information. 
Oral notices will be confirmed in writing no later than the following payday. If the payday is less than one 
week after the oral notice is given, written notice will be provided no later than the subsequent payday. 

Eligible employees who request OMFLA leave shall not be required to use any available accrued paid time 
off during the OMFLA leave period. 

Benefits and Insurance 

When an eligible employee returns to work following a FMLA or OFLA qualified leave, the employee 
must be reinstated to the same position the employee held when the leave commenced, or to an equivalent 
position with equivalent benefits, pay and other terms and conditions of employment. 

During an OFLA qualified leave an eligible employee does not accrue seniority orother benefits that 
would have accrued while the employee was working, µnless the terms of a collective bargaining 
agreement, other agreement or other employer'. s poHcy provide otherwise1.~. The eligible employee is also 
subject to layoff to the same extent similarly situated employees not taking OFLA leave are subject unless 
the terms of an applicable collective bargaining agreement, other agreement or the district's policies 
provide otherwise. 

For the purposes of FMLA and OFLA, the district will continue to pay the employer portion of the eligible 
employee's group health insurance contribution (if applicable) during the qualified leave period. The 
eligible employee is required to pay the employee portion of any such group health insurance contribution 
as a condition of continued coverage. 

For the purposes ofFMLA qualified leave, the district's obligation to maintain the employee's group 
health insurance coverage will cease if the employee's contribution is remitted more than 30 calendar days 

12 See also-ORS :J42,934(4)(d) in recluctionfcircesituationsi 

CR/06/20 J RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

11-15 



late. The district will provide written notice that the premium payment is more than 30 calendar days late. 
Such notice will be provided within 15 calendar days before coverage is to cease. 

For the purposes ofOMFLA, the eligible employee is entitled to a continuation of benefits. 

Fitness-for-Duty Certification 

Prior to the reinstatement of an employee following a leave which was the result of the employee's own 
serious health condition, the district may require the employee to obtain and present a Fitness-for-Duty 
Certification. The certification will specifically address the employee's ability to perform the essential 
functions of the employee's job as they relate to the health condition that was the reason for the leave. If 
the district is going to require a fitness-for-duty certification upon return to work, the district must notify 
the employee of such requirement when the leave is designated as FMLA and/or OFLA leave. Failure to 
provide the certification may result in a delay or denial of reinstatement. 

For the purposes ofFMLA qualified leave, any costs associated with obtaining the fitness-for-duty 
certification shall be borne by the employee. 

For the purposes of OFLA qualified leave, any out-of-pocket costs associated with obtaining the fitness
for-duty certification shall be borne by the district. 

If the leave is qualified under both FMLA and OFLA, any out-of-pocket costs associated with obtaining 
the fitness-for-duty certification shall be borne by the district. 

Application 

Under federal and state law, an eligible employee requesting FMLA and/or OFLA leave shall provide at 
least 30 days' notice prior to the leave date if the leave is foreseeable. The notice shall be written and 
include the anticipated start date, duration and reasons for the requested leave. When appropriate, the 
eligible employee must make a reasonable effort to schedule treatment, including intermittent leave and 
reduced leave, so as not to unduly disrupt the operation of the district. 

The district may request additional information to determine that the requested leave qualifies as FMLA 
and/or OFLA leave. The district may designate the employee as provisionally on FMLA and/or OFLA 
leave until sufficient information is received to properly make a determination. An eligible employee able 
to give advance notice of the need to take FMLA and/or OFLA leave must follow the employer's known, 
reasonable and customary procedures for requesting any kind of leave. 

For the purposes ofFMLA, if advance notice is not possible, an employee eligible for FMLA leave must 
provide notice as soon as practicable. "As soon as practicable," for the purpose of FMLA leave, means the 
employee must comply with the employer's normal call-in procedures except in limited and under unique 
circumstances. Failure of an employee to provide the required notice for FMLA leave may result in the 
district delaying the employee's leave up to 30 days after the notice is ultimately given. 

For the purposes of OFLA, an eligible employee is required to provide oral or written notice within 24 
hours of commencement of the leave in unanticipated or emergency leave situations. The employee may 
designate a family member or friend to notify the district during that period of time. Failure of an 
employee to provide the required notice for leave covered by OFLA may result in the district deducting up 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

12-15 



to three weeks from the employee's unused OFLA leave in that one-year leave period. The employee may 
be subject to disciplinary action for not following the district's notice procedures. 

When an employee fails to give advance notice for both the FMLA and OFLA above, the district must 
choose the remedy that is most advantageous to the employee. 

In all cases, proper documentation must be submitted no later than three working days following the 
employee's return to work. 

Medical Certification 

The district may require an eligible employee toprovide medical documentation, when appropriate, to 
suppClrtthe ~tated re_asCJn for suchJe!!\'e ~ other than to care-for a child who requires home care due to the 
closure of the chilcl' s school or child care pro'lider_!!_S a result <Jf a public health emerge11cy. The district 
will provide written notification to an employee of this requirement within five working days of 
the employee's request for leave. If the employee provides less than 30 days' notice, the employee is 
required to submit such medical certification no later than 15 calendar days after receipt of the district's 
notification that medical certification is required. 

The district may request re-certification of a condition when the minimum duration of a certification 
expires if continued leave is requested. If the certification does not indicate a duration or indicates that it is 
ongoing, the district may request re-certification at least every six months in connection with an absence. 

Under federal law, a second medical opinion may be required whenever the district has reason to doubt the 
validity of the initial medical opinion. The health care provider may be selected by the district. The 
provider shall not be employed by the district on a regular basis. Should the first and second medical 
certifications differ, a third opinion may be required. The district and the employee will mutually agree on 
the selection of the health care provider for a third medical certification. The third opinion will be final. 
Second and third opinions and the actual travel expenses for an employee to obtain such opinions will be 
paid for by the district. 

Second and Third Opinions 

I. For the purposes of FMLA, the district may designate a second health care provider, but that person 
cannot be utilized by the district on a regular basis except in rural areas where health care is 
extremely limited. If the opinions of the employee's and the district's designated health care 
provider(s) differ, the district may require a third opinion at the district's expense. The third health 
care provider must be designated or approved jointly by the employee and the district. This third 
opinion shall be final and binding. 

2. For the purposes of OFLA, and except for leave related to sick child leave under OFLA, the district 
may require the employee to obtain a second opinion from a health care provider designated by the 
district. If the first and second verifications conflict, the employer may require the two health care 
providers to jointly designate a third health care provider for the purpose of providing a verification. 
This third verification shall be final and binding. 

Notification 

CR/06/20 I RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave * - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

13-15 



Any notice required by federal and state laws explaining employee rights and responsibilities will be 
posted in all staff rooms and the district office: Additional information may be obtained by contacting the 
superintendent. 

Record Keeping/Posted Notice 

The district will maintain all records as required by federal and state laws including dates leave is taken by 
employees, identified separately from other leave; hours/days of leave; copies of general and specific 
notices to employees, including Board policy(ies) and regulations; premium payments of employee health 
benefits while on leave and records of any disputes with employees regarding granting of leave. 

Medical documentation will be maintained separately from personnel files as confidential medical records. 

The district will post notice of FMLA and OFLA leave requirements. 

Federal vs. State Law 

Both federal and state law contain provisions regarding leave for family illness. Federal regulations state 
an employer must comply with both laws; that the federal law does not supersede any provision of state 
law that provides greater family leave rights than those established pursuant to federal law; and that OFLA 
and FMLA leave entitlements run concurrently. State law requires that FMLA and OFLA leave 
entitlements run concurrently when possible. 

For example, due to differences in regulations, an eligible employee who takes OFLA leave after 180 days 
of employment, but before they are eligible for FMLA leave, is still eligible to take a full 12 workweeks of 
FMLA leave after meeting FMLA's eligibility requirements. Thereafter, any eligible leave period will run 
concurrently, when appropriate. 

CR/06/20 J RS Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

14-15 



EMPLOYEE RIGHTS ANB RESPONSIBILITIES UNDER TIIE FAMILY ANB MEBIC>'.L LEAVE ACT 

Basie Lea,•e Entitlemeet Ea:;5:r1~:~-z;r: ~:~1:~:i: l!,i~:••I" of 

~er ineapaeity due te pregnaRe~, prenatal meBieal eare er ehilei -Te 'eare fer the em13leyee's el'lilel after biRh, er 19laeemeAt fer 
aEl.eptim~ er foster eare; 
J~ r:".~::t:::r.:r;i;"::!J~l':?e;o" or aauglater, er pareat, 

f:er a serieus health eenelition that makes the empleyee 1:1nable te 
perferm the emple~ ee's jeb. 

Militery Family Leave Entitlements 
81igible em13leyees v.itR a s13ouse, sen, 8a1;1ghter, er pareAt en 
eevered aetive But!, er eall te ee,.·ereel aetive duty stah:is A'lflj' 1:1se 
their 12 week leaYe entitlement te aelelress eeRatn EJ.1::mlifYiAg 

£:=$5:5=5~?=:" 
eet1:aseling sessio0s, aRB aHeRelmg post deploymeRt reiRtegratioR 
erieliags. 

~~~~~~=•;:~::;! l~~~=~~~~!~J::itr a 
eo, ered sen ieemember dunag a siRgle 12 moRth ~eriod. A 
eo,1ered servieemember is: (1) a eurreat member of the Armed 
Forees, iReludiRg a memBer of the 1'!a-tioRal Guard er Reserves, 
who is uaderegoiRg medieal treatmeRt, reeUfleratieR or therapy, is 

e5:e£E~FS:S'.:9EF.C 
than dishoRoraBle at BR) time duriRg the H, e ) ear period prior to 
the First elate the eligiBle eFRployee takes FMLA leave to eare for 
the ea, ered vetera0, &Rd v. he is unelei:goiag medieal treatmeRt, 
reeupera-tiOR, or therap)' for a serious 1R;iury or illaess*. 
*The FML.+,. definitien ef "serieus in;1ury er illness" fer 
eunent servieememhers and veterans are distinct frem the 
Ji".MbA definition of"serieus health eenditien". 

Benefits and Preteetiens 
Duriag FMLA leave, the employer must maiRtaiR the emplo)•ee's 

::i~~:=~~-:e:~ ~;~::;~;e:J,P~:,~:=~:::·"'" 
FMLA lea;•e, most eFRpio)•ees must Be restered to their origiRal er 
eei1;1ivaleRt positions with eq1;1ivaleRt pay, BeRefits, aRB ether 

e:!E'.5~ :=:~; ::~~~ :t::~:~~:~:z:ieAl 

Eligibility Requirements 
Elrn~lo)·ees are eligiele ifllae)· laave workea fer a ea, erea 
employer for at least 12 moRths, have 1,250 hours efser;•iee e;rer 
the ~revious 12 moRths, aRB ifat least 50 empleyees are 
ernplo)·ea 1,y tlae emplo) er witlaiA ,; miles. 

Qefinition of Serious Health Condition 
A serio1;1s health eeRditioR is aR illness, iRju~:y. impairmeRt, or 

i:~=:r:~~J:m;'.i:: .i::t::::~·:::~:~l'b;~=~ :~ 
pro, ider for a eonBitioR that either preveats the eFRpie)•ee ffom. 

;:n$l~t:::t:; &!:e;;;~IZ~~~=~~=:~:~· 
SuBjeet to eeFtai0 eo08itions, the eoRtiRuiRg treatment 
reeiuirem.eRt ma:,• Be met By a period of iReapaeity of FRere thaR 
three eeRseeutive ealeRdar ela:,•s eomSiReel with at least two visits 
ta a health eare provider er eRe visit aRB a regimen ef eoRtinuiRg 
treatmeRt, or iReapaeit)• due to pregnaRey, er 1Reapaeit)' 81;1e to a 

ehreAie eenditieR. Other eenditiens may 1-lleet the BefiAitien ef 
eentim.1ing treatment. 
Use af Lem e 

Ci::~:t=!':fu:~1::t.:,:~t~~~~:;::~~= i~a'::" 
sehedule wheR meBieali)' Reeessaf). Em.plo)•ees must make 
reasenaBle eff8Fts to seheBule leave Klr plaRReB ffledieal treatment 

: ;~?:j::;:~~~=:~::ii;;:1:~"!":!i::,.;;1:~:1 ""' 
basis. 

Substitution ef Pnid Lenve f-er Unpaid Leave 

a1.1::,:5~~i:~E;ifE=15" 
aermal paid lea,•e pelie1es. 

Employee Respensibilities 
£mployees m1;1st provide 3Q da:,rs aBvanee Retiee efthe Reed ta 
take FHLA leave v•heR the need is Klreseeal:ile. WheR JQ days' 
netiee is Rot possiBle, the employee must pre,•ide Rotiee as seen 
as praetieaBle aRB geRerally must eomply with an emple)•er's 

~~ 
aeth ities, the need for Aosr.italizatien er eontinuiRg treatm.ent B~ 

~:~ ~;~t::e~r,:;;;i~::~::rr:t::z:: :;;;;;:r 
essE5SESE~=a~ 
Reed for leave. 

Empleyer Responsibilities 
CevereB employers must inffirFR eFRpleyees reeiuestiRg leave 

~::=& =~-:m\=t:r.1:~~~1=~.:~::.n~:":'1a, 
employees' rigl:its anB respensiBilities. If they are Rot eligil:ile, the 
emple)•er m1;1st pro;•ide a reasen for the iReligiBilit). 

~J:;!'l=1
~l::;.:t:::~:i;:~i::;::;·~:!~.1:,"tea 

~~:!;:.': =~~;,.~\'";:'~:'~:Z:\~;;=J,"i/;!°:';,10) er 
must notif) the em.ployee. 

~A:,1;;:~;1',;;;=~r~•:A)' ernpiO)'eF le: 
IRterfere with, restraiR, or deRy the ei:ereise of any right 

provided under FMLA; aRd 

p~~r::~:: ~==~mi:;.;r:~:1;::;::,:~. aay 
proeeeding u08er or relat1Rg to fl4LA. 

Enf.ereement 

~~ERE:a~==~::rJi:"1

. ef 
diseriminatioR, or superseBe BR)' State or loeal !av• or eelleetlve 
BargainiRg a-greement whieh prevides greater fufflily or medieal 
leave rights. 

Far edditienel infermetian: 

CR/06/20 J RS 

1 &66 1US WAGB (1 &66 187 9213) TTY: 1 &77 &&9 §627 
\l/l,\'l.V.V.lAGEIIOUR.DOL.GOV 

U.S. Department efLaeer: Wage and lleur DiYisien 

Federal Family and Medical Leave/State Family 
Medical Leave* - GCBDA/GDBDA-AR(l) 

15-15 



~ 
s~;,~~! ,~9;Jt 

Code: IGBAF-AR 
Adopted: I I /14/05 

Revised/Readopted: 3/ I 0/08 
Revision !st Reading: 2/14/2022 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP) 

I. General IEP Information 
a. The district ensures that an IEP is in effect for each eligible student: 

(I) Before special education and related services are provided to a student; 
(2) At the beginning of each school year for each student with a disability for whom the district is 

responsible; and 
(3) Before the district implements all the special education and related services, including program 

modifications, supports and/or supplementary aids and services, as identified on the IEP. 
b. The district uses: 

(I) The Oregon standard IEP; or 
(2) An IEP form that has been approved by the Oregon Department of Education. 

c. The district develops and implements all provisions of the IEP as soon as possible following the IEP 
meeting. 

d. The IEP will be accessible to each of the student's regular education teacher(s), the student's special 
education teacher(s) and the student's related services provider(s) and other service provider(s). 

e. The district informs all teachers and service providers of their specific responsibilities for implementing 
the IEP accommodations, modifications and/or supports that must be provided for or on behalf of the 
student to fully implement the IEP, including any amendments the district and parents agreed to make 
between annual reviews. 

f. The district takes steps to ensure that parents are present at each IEP meeting or have the opportunity to 
participate through other means. 

g. The district ensures that each teacher and service provider is informed of: 
(1) Their specific responsibilities for implementing the IEP specific accommodations, modifications 

and/or supports that must be provided for, or on behalf of the student; and 
(2) Their responsibility to fully implement the IEP including any amendments the district and parents 

agreed to make between annual reviews. 
The district takes whatever action is necessary to ensure that parents understand the proceedings of the 
IEP team meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents with deafness or whose native 
language is other than English. 

h. The district provides a copy of the IEP to the parents at no cost. 

2. IEP Meetings 
a. The district conducts IEP meetings within 30 calendar days of the determination that the student is 

eligible for special education and related services. 
b. The district convenes IEP meetings for each eligible student periodically, but not less than once per year. 
c. At IEP meetings, the team reviews and revises the IEP to address any lack of expected progress toward 

annual goals and in the general curriculum, new evaluation data or new information from the parents, the 
student's anticipated needs, or the need to address other matters. 

d. Between annual IEP meetings, the district and the parent may amend or modify the student's current IEP 
without convening an IEP team meeting using the procedures in the Agreement to Amend or Modify IEP 
subsection. 

e. When the parent requests a meeting, the district will either schedule a meeting within a reasonable time or 
provide timely written prior notice of the district's refusal to hold a meeting. 

f. If an agency other than the district fails to provide agreed upon transition services contained in the IEP, 
the district convenes an IEP meeting to plan alternative strategies to meet the transition objectives and, if 
necessary, to revise the IEP. 

3. IEP Team Members 
a. The district's IEP team members include the following: 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)'* - IGBAF-AR 
1-6 



(1) The student's parents; 
(2) The student, if the purpose of the IEP meeting is to consider the student's postsecondary goals and 

transition services (beginning for IEPs in effect at age 16), or for younger students, when 
appropriate; 

(3) At least one of the student's special education teachers or, if appropriate, at least one of the 
student's special education providers; 

(4) At least one of the student's regular education teachers if the student is or may be participating in 
the regular education environment. If the student has more than one regular education teacher, the 
district will determine which teacher or teachers will participate; 

(5) A representative of the district (who may also be another member of the team) who is qualified to 
provide or supervise the provision of special education and is knowledgeable about district 
resources. The representative of the district will have the authority to commit district resources, 
and be able to ensure that all services identified in the IEP can be delivered; 

(6) An individual, who may also be another member of the team, who can interpret the instructional 
implications of the evaluation results; and 

(7) At the discretion of the parent or district, other persons who have knowledge or special expertise 
regarding the student. 

b. Student participation: 
(1) Whenever appropriate, the student with a disability is a member of the team. 
(2) If the purpose of the IEP meeting includes consideration of postsecondary goals and transition 

services for the student, the district includes the student in the IEP team meeting. 
(3) If the purpose of the IEP meeting includes consideration of postsecondary goals and transition 

services for the student, and the student does not attend the meeting, the district will take other 
steps to consider the student's preferences and interests in developing the IEP. 

c. Participation by other agencies: 
( 1) With parent or adult student written consent, and where appropriate, the district invites a 

representative of any other agency that is likely to be responsible for providing or paying for 
transition services if the purpose of the IEP meeting includes the consideration of transition 
services (beginning at age 16, or younger if appropriate); and 

(2) If the district refers or places a student in an ESD, state operated program, private school or other 
educational program, IEP team membership includes a representative from the appropriate 
agencies. Participation may consist of attending the meeting, conference call or participating 
through other means. 

4. Agreement for Nonattendance and Excusal 
a. The district and the parent may consent to excuse an IEP team member from attending an IEP meeting, in 

whole or in part, when the meeting involves a discussion or modification of team member's area of 
curriculum or service. The district designates specific individuals to authorize excusal of IEP team 
members. 

b. If excusing an IEP team member whose area is to be discussed at an IEP meeting, the district ensures: 
(1) The parent and the district consent in writing to the excusal; 
(2) The team member submits written input to the parents and other members of the IEP team before 

the meeting; and 
(3) The parent is informed of all information related to the excusal in the parent's native language or 

other mode of communication according to consent requirements. 

5. IEP Content 
a. In developing the IEP, the district considers the student's strengths, the parent's concerns, the results of 

the initial or most recent evaluation, and the academic, developmental and functional needs of the student. 
b. The district ensures that IEPs for each eligible student includes: 

(1) A statement of the student's present levels of academic achievement and functional performance 
that: 
(a) Includes a description of how the disability affects the progress and involvement in the 

general education curriculum; 
Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)*' - IGBAF-AR 

2-6 



(b) Describes the results of any evaluations conducted, including functional and developmental 
information; 

(c) ls written in language that is understood by all IEP team members, including parents; 
( d) ls clearly linked to each annual goal statement; 
(e) Includes a description of benchmarks or short term objectives for children with disabilities 

who take alternative assessments aligned to alternate achievement standards. 
(2) A statement of measurable annual goals, including academic and functional goals, or for students 

whose performance is measured by alternate assessments aligned to alternate achievement 
standard, statements of measurable goals and short term objectives. The goals and, if appropriate, 
objectives: 
(a) Meet the student's needs that are present because of the disability, or because of behavior 

that interferes with the student's ability to learn, or impedes the learning of other students. 
(b) Enable the student to be involved in and progress in the general curriculum, as appropriate; 

and 
(c) Clearly describe the anticipated outcomes, including intermediate steps, if appropriate, that 

serve as a measure of progress toward the goal. 
(3) A statement of the special education services, related services, supplementary aids and services that 

the district provides to the student: 
(a) The district bases special education and related services, modifications and supports on peer

reviewed research to the extent practicable to assist students in advancing toward goals, 
progressing in the general curriculum and participating with other students (including those 
without disabilities), in academic, nonacademic and extracurricular activities. 

(b) Each statement of special education services, related or supplementary services, aids, 
modifications or supports includes a description of the inclusive dates, amount or frequency, 
location and who is responsible for implementation. 

(4) A statement of the extent, if any, to which the student will not participate with nondisabled students 
in regular academic, nonacademic and extracurricular activities. 

(5) A statement of any individual modifications and accommodations in the administration of state or 
district wide assessments of student achievement. 
(a) A student will not be exempt from participation in state or district wide assessment because 

of a disability unless the parent requests an exemption; 
(b) If the IEP team determines that the student will take an alternate assessment in any area 

instead of a regular state or district wide assessment, a statement of why the student cannot 
participate in the regular assessment and why the alternate assessment selected is appropriate 
for the student. 

(6) A statement describing how the district will measure student's progress toward completion of the 
annual goals and when periodic reports on the student's progress toward the annual goals will be 
provided. 

6. Agreement to Amend or Modify IEP 
Between annual IEP meetings, the district and the parent may agree to make changes in the student's current 
IEP without holding an IEP meeting. These changes require a signed, written agreement between the district 
and the parent. 
a. The district and the parent record any amendments, revisions or modifications on the student's current 

IEP. If additional IEP pages are required these pages must be attached to the existing IEP. 
b. The district files a complete copy of the IEP with the student's education records and informs the 

student's IEP team and any teachers or service providers of the changes. 
c. The district provides the parent prior written notice of any changes in the IEP and upon request, provides 

the parent with a reserved copy of the IEP with the changes incorporated. 

7. IEP Team Considerations and Special Factors 
a. In developing, reviewing and revising the IEP, the IEP team considers: 

(I) The strengths of the student and concerns of the parent for enhancing the education of the student; 
(2) The results of the initial or most recent evaluation of the student; 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)" - IGBAF-AR 
3-6 



(3) As appropriate, the results of the student's performance on any general state or districtwide 
assessments; 
(4) The academic, developmental, and functional needs of the child. 

b. In developing, reviewing and revising the student's IEP, the IEP team considers the following special 
factors: 
(I) The communication needs of the student; and 
(2) The need for assistive technology services and/or devices. 

c. As appropriate, the IEP team also considers the following~ecial factors: 
(I) For a student whose behavior impedes his er her lliei\1 learning or that of others, strategies, positive 

behavioral intervention and supports to address that behavior; 
(2) For a student with limited English proficiency, the language needs of the student as those needs 

relate to the IEP; 
(3) For a student who is blind or visually impaired, instruction in Braille and the use of Braille unless 

the IEP team determines (after an evaluation of reading and writing skills, needs and media, 
including evaluation of future needs for instruction in Braille or the use of Braille, appropriate 
reading and writing), that instruction in Braille or the use of Braille is not appropriate; and 

(4) For a student who is deaf or hard of hearing, the student's language and communication needs, 
including opportunities for direct communication with peers and professional personnel in the 
student's language and communication mode, academic level and full range of needs, including 
opportunities for direct instruction in the student's language and communication mode. 

5".t./.Yf'~"istiilientisidedn:iieafbli ·· tne-ilistrict'.\lvill·"'·rbVideiinformaffoJ 
·--7 aB~:li;;'.~hl+>f f ~~i2b~fs'ii_ _ ,. _ 'tili;fien/icii dist¥Jt·lli.J!Jai1Qatf&ri%:~~tl ~~~1=t~~g, ~ =,.il{agJircfr~&!i?eiffi;itif~'~-~~---------·-· 
(6) A statement of any device or service needed for the student to receive a Free Appropriate Public 

Education. 

d. In addition to the above IEP contents, the IEP for each eligible student of transition age includes: 
(I) (I) Beginning not later than the FrrstJIEP in effect when the student turns 16, or M,~aili] 

~ii:!4::QDYounger:) if determined appropriate by the IEP tearr{(j1,19l_ugirtg;Jiare11l@, and 
updated annually thereafter, the IEP must include: 

(a) Appropriate measurable postsecondary goals based upon age-appropriate transition 
assessments related to training education, employment, and where appropriate, 
independent living skills; and 

rfill!l]The transition services (including courses of study) needed to assist the student in 
reaching those goals. 
( i) "" -~=,,-;. . 

(2) At least one year before a student reaches the age of majority (student reaches the age of 18, or has 
married or been emancipated, whichever occurs first), a statement that the district has informed the 
student that all procedural rights will transfer at the age of majority; and 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** - IGBAF-AR 
4-6 



e. 

(3) If identified transition service providers, other than the district, fail to provide any of the services 
identified on the IEP, the district will initiate an IEP meeting as soon as possible to address 
alternative strategies and revise the IEP if necessary. 

8. Incarcerated Youth 
a. For students with disabilities who are convicted as adults, incarcerated in adult correctional facilities and 

otherwise entitled to F APE, the following IEP requirements do not apply: 
( 1) Participation of students with disabilities in state and districtwide assessment; and 
(2) Transition planning and transition services, for students whose eligibility will end because of their 

age before they will be eligible to be released from an adult correctional facility based on 
consideration of their sentence and eligibility for early release. 

b. The IEP team may modify the student's IEP, if the state has demonstrated a bona fide security or other 
compelling interest that cannot be otherwise accommodated. 

9. Extended School Year Services 
a. The district makes extended school year (ESY) services available to all students for whom the IEP team 

has determined that such services are necessary to provide a free appropriate public education (FAPE) 
and. 

b. ESY services are: 
( 1) Provided to a student with a disability in addition to the services provided during the typical school 

year; 
(2) Identified in the student's IEP; and 
(3) Provided at no cost to the parent. 

c. The district does not limit consideration of ESY services to particular categories of disability or 
unilaterally limit the type, amount or duration of service. 

d. The district provides ESY services to maintain the student's skills or behavior, but not to teach new skills 
or behaviors. 

e. The district's criteria for determining the need for extended school year services include: 
{I) Regression (a significant loss of skills or behaviors) and recoupment time based on documented 

evidence; or 
(2) If no documented evidence, on predictions according to the professional judgment of the team. 

f. "Regression" means significant loss of skills or behaviors in any area specified on the IEP as a result of 
an interruption in education services. 

g. "Recoupment" means the recovery of skills or behaviors specified on the IEP to a level demonstrated 
before the interruption of education services. 

9. Assistive Technology 
a. The district ensures that assistive technology devices or assistive technology services, or both, are made 

available if they are identified as part of the student's IEP. These services and/or devices may be part of 
the student's special education, related services or supplementary aids and services. 

b. On a case-by-case basis, the district permits the use of district-purchased assistive technology devices in 
the student's home or in other settings if the student's IEP team determines that the student needs access 
to those devices to receive a free appropriate public education. In these situations, district policy will 
govern liability and transfer of the device when the student ceases to attend the district. 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (!EP)** - !GBAF-AR 
1 5-6 



10. Transfer Students 
a. In state: 

If a student with a disability (who had an IEP that was in effect in a previous district in Oregon) transfers 
into the district and enrolls in a district school within the same school year, the district (in consultation 
with the student's parents) provides a free appropriate public education to the student (including services 
comparable to those described in the student's IEP from the previous district), until the district either: 
(1) Adopts the student's IEP from the previous district; or 
(2) Develops, adopts and implements a new IEP for the student in accordance with all of the IEP 

provisions. 
b. Out of state: 

If a student transfers into the district with a current IEP from a district in another state, the district, in 
consultation with the student's parents, will provide a free appropriate public education to the student, 
including services comparable to those described in the student's IEP from the previous district, until the 
new district: 
( 1) Conducts an initial evaluation (if determined necessary by the new district to determine Oregon 

eligibility) with parent consent and determines whether the student meets eligibility criteria 
described in Oregon Administrative Rules. 

(2) If the student is eligible under Oregon criteria, the district develops, adopts and implements a new 
IEP for the student using the Oregon Standard IEP or an approved alternate IEP. 

(3) If the student does not meet Oregon eligibility criteria, the district provides prior written notice to 
the parents explaining that the student does not meet Oregon eligibility criteria and specifying the 
date when special education services will be terminated. 

Special Education - Individualized Education Program (IEP)** • IGBAF-AR 
6-6 



~ 
) ~1.~ti~~l t:~1; 

Code: IGBAG-AR 
Adopted: 11/14/05 

Revised/Readopted: 3/10/08, 9/14/09, 9/9/13 
Revision I" Reading: 2/14/2022 

Special Education - Procedural Safeguards 

I. Procedural Safeguards 
a. The district provides procedural safeguards to: 

(I) Parents, guardians (unless the guardian is a state agency) or persons in parental relationship to the 
student; 

(2) Surrogate parents; and 
(3) Students who have reached the age of 18, the age of majority, or are considered emancipated under 

Oregon law and to whom rights have transferred by statute, identified as adult students (called 
"eligible students"). 

b. The district gives parents a copy of the Notice of Procedural Safeguards, published by the Oregon 
Department of Education (ODE): 
(I) At least once a year; and 
(2) At the first referral or parental request for evaluation to determine eligibility for special education 

services; 
(3) When the parent (or adult student) requests a copy; 
(4) To the parent and the student one year before the student's 18th birthday or upon learning that the 

student is considered emancipated. 
c. The Notice of Procedural Safeguards is: 

(I) Provided written in the native language or oiher communication of the parents (unless it is clearly 
not feasible to do so) and in language clearly understandable to the public. 

(2) If the native language or other mode ofcommunication of the parent is not a written language, the 
district takes steps to ensure that: 
(a) The notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in hls4ief t.Heill native language 

or other mode of communication; 
(b) The parent understands the content of the notice; and 
(c) There is written evidence that the district has met these requirements. 

2. Content of Procedural Safeguards Notice 
The procedural safeguards notice includes all of the content provided in the Notice of Procedural Safeguards 
published by the Oregon Department of Education. 

3. Parent or Adult Student Meeting Participation 
a. The district provides parents or adult students an opportunity to participate in meetings with respect to the 

identification, evaluation, IEP and educational placement of the student, and the provision ofa free 
appropriate public education to the student. 

b. The district provides parents or adult students written notice of any meeting sufficiently in advance to 
ensure an opportunity to attend. The written notice: 
(I) States the purpose, time and place of the meeting and who is invited to attend; 
(2) Advises that parents or adult students may invite other individuals who they believe have 

knowledge or special expertise regarding the student; 
(3) Advises the parents or adult student that the team may proceed with the meeting even if they are 

not in attendance; 
(4) Advises the parent or adult students who to contact before the meeting to provide information if 

they are unable to attend; and 
(5) Indicates if one of the meeting's purposes is to consider transition services or transition service 

needs. If so: 
(a) Indicates that the student will be invited; and 
(b) Identifies any agencies invited to send a representative. 

c. The district takes steps to ensure that one or both of the parents of a student with a disability are present at 
each IEP or placement meeting or are afforded the opportunity to participate, including: 
(I) Notifying parents of the meeting early enough to ensure that they will have an opportunity to 

attend;and 
(2) Scheduling the meeting at a mutually agreed on time and place. 

d. If neither parent can participate, the district will use other methods to ensure participation, including, but 
not limited to, individual or conference phone calls or home visits. 

e. The district may conduct an evaluation planning or eligibility meeting without the parent or adult student 
if the district provided meeting notice to the parent or adult student sufficiently in advance to ensure an 
opportunity to attend. 

Special Education - Procedural Safeguards*' - IGBAG-AR 
1-7 



f. The district may conduct an IEP or placement meeting without the parent or adult student if the district is 
unable to convince the parents or adult students that they should participate. Attempts to convince the 
parent to participate will be considered sufficient if the district: 
(!) Communicates directly with the parent or adult student and arranges a mutually agreeable time and 

place and sends written notice to confirm the arrangement; or 
(2) Proposes a time and place in the written notice stating that a different time and place might be 

requested and confirms that the notice was received. 
g. If the district proceeds with an IEP meeting without a parent or adult student, the district must have a 

record of its attempts to arrange a mutually agreed upon time and place such as: 
( l) Detailed records of telephone calls made or attempted and the results of those calls; 
(2) Copies of correspondence sent to the parents and any responses received; and 
(3) Detailed records of visits made to the parents' home or place of employment and the results of 

those visits. 
h. The district takes whatever action is necessary to ensure that the parent or adult student understands the 

proceedings at a meeting, including arranging for an interpreter for parents or adult students who are deaf 
or whose native language is other than English. 

i. After the transfer of rights to an adult student at the age of majority, the district provides written notice of 
meetings to the adult student and parent, if the parent can be reasonably located. After the transfer of 
rights to an adult student at the age of majority, a parent receiving notice of an IEP meeting is not entitled 
to attend the meeting unless invited by the adult student or the district. 

j. An IEP meeting does not include: 
(I) Informal or unscheduled conversations involving district personnel; 
(2) Conversations on issues such as teaching methodology, lesson plans or coordination of service 

provision if those issues are not addressed in the student's IEP; or 
(3) Preparatory activities that district or public personnel engage in to develop a proposal or response 

to a parent proposal that will be discussed at a later meeting. 
4. Surrogate Parents 

a. The district protects the rights of a student with a disability, or suspected of having a disability, by 
appointing a surrogate parent when: 
(I) The parent cannot be identified or located after reasonable efforts; 
(2) The student is a ward of the state or an unaccompanied homeless youth and there is reasonable 

cause to believe that the student has a disability, and there is no foster parent or other person 
available who can act as the parent of the student; or 

(3) The parent or adult student requests the appointment of a surrogate parent. 
b. The district secures nominations of persons to serve as surrogates. The district appoints surrogates within 

30 days of a determination that the student needs a surrogate, unless a surrogate has already been 
appointed by juvenile court. 

c. The district will only appoint a surrogate who: 
( l) Is not an employee of the district or the Oregon Department of Education; 
(2) ls not an employee of any other agency involved in the education or care of the student; 
(3) Is free of any personal or professional interest that would interfere with representing the student's 

special education interests; and 
(4) Has the necessary knowledge and skills that ensure adequate representation of the student in 

special education decisions. The district will provide training, as necessary, to ensure that 
surrogate parents have the requisite knowledge. 

d. The district provides all special education rights and procedural safeguards to appointed surrogate parents. 
e. A surrogate will not be considered an employee of the district solely on the basis that the surrogate is 

compensated from public funds. 
f. The duties of the surrogate parent are to: 

(I) Protect the special education rights of the student; 
(2) Be acquainted with the student's disability and the student's special education needs; 
(3) Represent the student in all matters relating to the identification, evaluation, IEP and educational 

placement of the student; and 
(4) Represent the student in all matters relating to the provision of a free appropriate public education 

to the student. 
g. A parent may give written consent for a surrogate to be appointed. 

(!) When a parent requests that a surrogate be appointed, the parent shall retain all parental rights to 
receive notice and all of the information provided to the surrogate. When the district appoints a 
surrogate at parent request, the district will continue to provide to the parent a copy of all notices 
and other information provided to the surrogate. 

Special Education - Procedural Safeguards** - IGBAG-AR 
2-7 



(2) The surrogate, alone, shall be responsible for all matters relating to the special education of the 
student. The district will treat the surrogate as the parent unless and until the parent revokes 
consent for the surrogate's appointment. 

(3) If a parent gives written consent for a surrogate to be appointed, the parent may revoke consent at 
any time by providing a written request to revoke the surrogate's appointment; 

h. An adult student to whom rights have transferred at age of majority may give written consent for a 
surrogate to be appointed. When an adult student requests that a surrogate be appointed, the student shall 
retain all rights to receive notice and all of the information provided to the surrogate. The surrogate, 
alone, shall be responsible for all matters relating to the special education of the student. The district will 
treat the surrogate as the adult student unless and until the adult student revokes consent for the 
surrogate's appointment. If an adult student gives written consent for a surrogate to be appointed, the 
adult student may revoke consent at any time by providing a written request to revoke the surrogate's 
appointment. 

i. The district may change or terminate the appointment of a surrogate when: 
( 1) The person appointed as surrogate is no longer willing to serve; 
(2) Rights transfer to the adult student or the student graduates with a regular diploma; 
(3) The student is no longer eligible for special education services; 
(4) The legal guardianship of the student is transferred to a person who is able to carry out the role of 

the parent; 
(5) A foster parent or other person is identified who can carry out the role of parent; 
( 6) The parent, who previously could not be identified or located, is now identified or located; 
(7) The appointed surrogate is no longer eligible; 
(8) The student moves to another district; or 
(9) The student is no longer a ward of the state or unaccompanied homeless youth. 

j. The district will not appoint a surrogate solely because the parent or student to whom rights have 
transferred is uncooperative or unresponsive to the special education needs of the student. 

5. Transfer of Rights at Age of Majority 
a. When a student with a disability reaches the age of majority, marries or is emancipated, rights previously 

accorded to the student's parents under the special education laws, transfer to the student. A student for 
whom rights have transferred is considered an "adult student" under OAR 581-015-2000(1 ). 

b. The district provides notice to the student and the parent that rights (accorded by statute) will transfer at 
the age of majority. This notice is provided at an IEP meeting and documented on the IEP: 
( 1) At least one year before the student's 18th birthday; 
(2) More than one year before the student's 18th birthday, if the student's IEP team determines that 

earlier notice will aid transition; or 
(3) Upon actual knowledge that within a year the student will likely marry or become emancipated 

before age 18. 
c. The district provides written notice to the student and to the parent at the time of the transfer. 
d. These requirements apply to all students, including students who are incarcerated in a state or local adult 

or juvenile correctional facility or jail. 
e. After transfer of rights to the student, the district provides any written prior notices and written notices of 

meetings required by the special education laws to the adult student and to the parent if the parent can be 
reasonably located. 

f. After rights have transferred to the student, receipt of notice of an IEP meeting does not entitle the parent 
to.~,(!endthe meet_l~g-~nle.~~J_1;yit:d 1ai,!~e. ~\,l!d.~~t or ~he,.sJ/s!rjc!:= .. ,- ___ ,, T ..,.., . __ -~~ _ ~ 

g. \E9.iRmm a1~1~thdiif~~~~--~-, . ' ,£\r.B~~l~~§;~~i~j~l&~fil P;~@y~i~~~~~liiih~~'7 t .. 'diye!hlfoi!fiati¥e'ff , ,,,,,, :/jf~f'8i'fuatiln,aha)i~'5tt€~t'~w!a'fauf'"'g 
~ ''•""'il'i''eii 'a ·eai:it; . . ttcitrb'atltfrr'M'di ·.·. Bst~sBh'tl'aI'lollfc1l"'n!'e~~The 
, · td"&-tillslfurc\"· ·" . RtiWtiltlH'•,tfi1tttrtrBlt1a~Bd1shusli1&'il'l!'M-t"~tr··--·- · 
i;~·-· ._ ~an:a:'ttim~1fri\ffl· !!- -----g-~----·-·-·----=P~-· 

6. Prior Written Notice 
a. The district provides prior written notice to the parent of a student, or student, within a reasonable period 

of time before the district: 
(I) Proposes to initiate or change the identification, evaluation or educational placement of the student, 

or the provision of a F APE to the child; or 
(2) Refuses to initiate or change the identification, evaluation or educational placement of the student, 

or the provision of a F APE to the child. 
b. The content of the prior written notice will include: 

(1) A description of the action proposed or refused by the district; 
Special Education. Procedural Safeguards*' - IGBAG-AR 

3-7 



(2) An explanation of why the district proposed or refused to take the action; 
(3) A description of each evaluation procedure, test, assessment, record or report used as a basis for the 

proposal or refusal; 
( 4) A statement that the parents of a student with a disability have procedural safeguards and, if this 

notice is not an initial referral for evaluation, how a copy of the Procedural Safeguards Notice may 
be obtained; 

(5) Sources for parents to contact to obtain assistance in understanding their procedural safeguards; 
( 6) A description of other options the IEP team considered and the reasons why those options were 

rejected; and 
(7) A description of other factors that are relevant to the agency's proposal or refusal. 

c. The prior written notice is: 
(!) Written in language understandable to the general public; and 
(2) Provided in the native language of the parent or other mode of communication used by the parent, 

unless it is clearly not feasible to do so; 
(3) If the native language or other mode of communication of the parent is not a written language, the 

district shall take steps to ensure that: 
(a) The notice is translated orally or by other means to the parent in the parent's native language 

or other mode of communication; 
(b) The parent understands the content of the notice; and 
( c) There is written evidence that the requirements of this rule have been met. 

7. Consent1 -Initial Evaluation 
a. The district provides notice and obtains informed written consent from the parent or adult student before 

conducting an initial evaluation to determine whether a student has a disability (as defined by Oregon 
law) and needs special education. Consent for initial evaluation is not consent for the district to provide 
special education and related services. 

b. The district makes reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent from a parent for an initial evaluation to 
determine a child's eligibility for special education services. If a parent does not provide consent for an 
initial evaluation or does not respond to a request for consent for an initial evaluation, the district may, but 
is not required to, pursue the initial evaluation of the child through mediation or due process hearing 
procedures. The district does not violate its child find obligations if it declines to pursue the evaluation 
using these procedures. 

8. Consent - Initial Provision of Special Education Services 
a. The district provides notice and obtains informed written consent from the parent or adult student before 

the initial provision of special education and related services to the student. 
b. The district makes reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent, but if a parent or adult student does not 

respond or refuses consent for initial provision of special education and related services, the district does 
not convene an IEP meeting, develop an IEP or seek to provide special education and related services 
through mediation or due process hearing procedures. The district will not be considered to be in 
violation of the requirement to make FAPE available to the student under these circumstances. The 
district stands ready to serve the student if the parent or adult student later consents. 

9. Consent - Re-evaluation 
a. The district obtains informed parent consent before conducting any re-evaluation of a child with a 

disability, except: 
(1) The district does not need written consent for a re-evaluation if the parent does not respond after 

reasonable efforts to obtain informed consent. However, the district does not conduct individual 
intelligence tests or tests of personality without consent. 

(2) If a parent refuses to consent to the re-evaluation, the district may, but is not required to, pursue the 
re-evaluation by using mediation or due process hearing procedures. 

b. A parent or adult student may revoke consent at any time before the completion of the activity for which 
they have given consent. If a parent or adult student revokes consent, that revocation is not retroactive. 

I 0. Consent - Other Requirements 
a. The district documents its reasonable efforts to obtain parent consent, such as phone calls, letters and 

meeting notes. 

1"Consent" means that the parent or adult student: a) has been fully informed, in hisAlef ffielil native language or other mode of 
communication, of all information relevant to the activity for which consent is sought; and b) understands and agrees in writing to 
the carrying out of the activity for which his/her consent is sought. Consent is voluntary of the part of the parent and meeting the 
requirements of consent provision for OAR 581-015-2090, IDEA and Family Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA). 

Special Education - Procedural Safeguards'* - IGBAG-AR 
4-7 



b. If a parent of a student who is home schooled or enrolled by the parents in a private school does not 
provide consent for the initial evaluation or the re-evaluation, or if the parent does not respond to a 
request for consent, the district: 
(I) Does not use mediation or due process hearing procedures to seek consent; and 
(2) Does not consider the child as eligible for special education services. 

c. If a parent or adult student refuses consent for one service or activity, the district does not use this refusal 
to deny the parent or child any other service, benefit or activity, except as specified by these rules and 
procedures. 

d. If, at any time subsequent to the initial provision of special and related services, the parent of a child 
revokes consent in writing for the continued provision of special education and related services, the 
district: 
(I) May not continue to provide special education and related services to the child, but must provide 

prior written notice before ceasing the provision of special education and related services; 
(2) May not use mediation or due process procedures to obtain an agreement or ruling that the services 

may be provided to the child; 
(3) The district will not be considered to be in violation of the requirement to make FAPE available to 

the child because of the failure to provide the child with further special education and related 
services; and 

(4) The district is not required to convene an IEP team meeting or develop an IEP for the child for 
further provision of special education or related services. 

11. Exceptions to Consent 
a. The district does not need written parent or adult student consent before: 

(I) Reviewing existing data as part of an evaluation or re-evaluation; 
(2) Administering a test or other evaluation administered to all students without consent unless, before 

administration of that test or evaluation, consent is required of parents of all students; 
(3) Conducting evaluations, tests, procedures or instruments that are identified on the student's 

individualized education program (IEP) as a measure for determining progress; or 
( 4) Conducting a screening of a student by a teacher or specialist to determine appropriate instructional 

strategies for curriculum implementation. 
b. The district does not need written parent consent to conduct an initial special education evaluation of a 

student who is a ward of the state and not living with the parent if: 
(!) Despite reasonable efforts to do so, the district has not been able to find the parent; 
(2) The parent's rights have been terminated in accordance with state law; or 
(3) The rights of the parent to make educational decisions have been subrogated by a judge in 

accordance with state law and consent for an initial evaluation has been given by an individual 
appointed by the judge to represent the child. 

c. The district does not need written parental consent if an administrative law judge (ALJ) determines that 
the evaluation or re-evaluation is necessary to ensure that the student is provided with a free appropriate 
public education. 

12. Independent Educational Evaluations (IEE) 
a. A parent of a student with a disability has a right to an independent educational evaluation at public 

expense if the parent disagrees with an evaluation obtained by the district. 
b. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation at public expense, the district provides 

information to parents about where an independent educational evaluation may be obtained, and the 
district criteria applicable for independent educational evaluations. 

c. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation at public expense, the district, without 
unnecessary delay, either: 
(I) Initiates a due process hearing to show that its evaluation is appropriate; or 
(2) Ensures that an independent educational evaluation is provided at public expense unless the district 

demonstrates in a hearing that the evaluation obtained by the parent did not meet district criteria. 
d. The district criteria for independent educational evaluations are the same as for district evaluations 

including, but not limited to, location, examiner qualifications and cost. 
(I) Criteria established by the district do not preclude the parent's access to an independent 

educational evaluation. 
(2) The district provides the parents the opportunity to demonstrate the unique circumstances justifying 

an IEE that does not meet the district's criteria. 
(3) A parent may be limited to one independent educational evaluation at public expense each time the 

district conducts an evaluation with which the parent disagrees. 
e. If a parent requests an independent educational evaluation, the district may ask why the parent disagrees 

with the public evaluation. The parent may, but is not required to provide an explanation. The district 
may not: 

Special Education - Procedural Safeguards'' - IGBAG-AR 
5-7 



(I) Unreasonably delay either providing the independent educational evaluation at public expense or 
initiating a due process hearing to defend the public evaluation; 

(2) Except for the criteria listed above inc., impose conditions or timelines related to obtaining an IEE 
at public expense. 

f. The district considers an independent educational evaluation submitted by the parent, in any decision 
made with respect to the provision ofa free appropriate public education to the student, if the submitted 
independent evaluation meets district criteria. 

13. Dispute Resolution - Mediation 
a. The district or parent may request mediation from ODE for any special education matter, including before 

the filing of a complaint or due process hearing request. 
b. The district acknowledges that: 

(I) Mediation must be voluntary on the part of the parties, must be conducted by a qualified and 
impartial mediator who is trained in effective mediation techniques and may not be used to deny or 
delay a parent's right to a due process hearing or filing a complaint. 

(2) Each mediation session must be scheduled in a timely manner and must be held in a location that is 
convenient to the parties to the dispute. 

(3) An agreement reached by the parties to the dispute in the mediation process must be set forth in a 
legally binding written mediation agreement that: 
(a) States the terms of the agreement; 
(b) States that all discussions that occurred during the mediation process remain confidential and 

may not be used as evidence in any subsequent due process hearing or civil proceeding; and 
( c) Is signed by the parent and a representative of the district who has the authority to bind the 

district to the mediation agreement. 
( 4) Mediation communication is not confidential if it relates to child or elder abuse and is made to a 

person who is required to report abuse, or threats of physical harm, or professional conduct 
affecting licensure. 

(S) The mediation agreement is enforceable in any state court of competent jurisdiction or in a district 
court of the United States. 

14. Dispute Resolution - Complaint Investigation 
a. Any organization or person may file a signed, written complaint with the State Superintendent of Public 

Instruction alleging that a district or ESD is violating or has violated the Individuals with Disabilities 
Education Act or associated regulations within one year before the date of the complaint. Upon receiving 
a parent complaint, the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) forwards the complaint to the district or 
ESD along with a request for a district response to the allegations in the complaint. 

b. Upon receiving a request for response from ODE, the district responds to the allegations and furnishes 
any requested information or documents within IO business days. 

c. The district sends a copy of the response to the complainant. IfODE decides to conduct an on-site 
investigation, district personnel participate in interviews and provide additional documents as needed. 

d. The district and the complainant may attempt to resolve a disagreement that led to a complaint through 
mediation. If they decide against mediation, or if mediation fails to produce an agreement, ODE will 
pursue the complaint investigation. 

e. IfODE substantiates some or all of the allegations in a complaint, it will order corrective action. The 
district satisfies its corrective action obligations in a timely manner. 

f. If the district disagrees with the findings and conclusions in a complaint final order, it may seek 
reconsideration by ODE or judicial review in county circuit court. 

IS. Due Process Hearing Requests 
a. The district acknowledges that parents may request a due process hearing if they disagree with a district 

proposal or refusal relating to the identification, evaluation, educational placement or provision of a free 
appropriate education to a student who may have a disability and be eligible for special education. 

b. The district may request a due process hearing regarding the identification, evaluation, educational 
placement or provision of a free appropriate education to a student who may have a disability and be 
eligible for special education. 

c. When requesting a due process hearing, the district or the attorney representing the district provides 
notice to the parent and to ODE. 

d. The party, including the district, that did not file the hearing request must, within IO days of receiving the 
request for a hearing, send to the other party a response that specifically addresses the issues raised in the 
hearing request. 

e. If the parent had not yet received prior written notice of the district's proposal or refusal, the district, 
within IO days of receiving the hearing request for a due process hearing, sends to the parent a response 
that includes: 
(I) An explanation of why the district proposed or refused to take the action raised in the hearing 

request; 
Special Education• Procedural Safeguards*'· IGBAG-AR 

6-7 



(2) A description of other options that the district considered and the reasons why those options were 
rejected; 

(3) A description of each evaluation procedure, assessment, record or report the district used as the 
basis for the proposed or refused action; and 

(4) A description of the factors relevant to the district's proposal or refusal. 
I 6. Resolution Session 

a. Within 15 days of receiving a due process hearing request, the district will hold a resolution session with 
the parents and the relevant members of the IEP team who have specific knowledge of the facts identified 
in the due process hearing request. 

b. This meeting will include a representative of the district who has decision-making authority for the 
district. 
(I) The district will not include an attorney unless the parent brings an attorney. 
(2) The district will provide the parent with an opportunity for the parent to discuss the hearing request 

and related facts so that the district has an opportunity to resolve the dispute. 
(3) The district and parent may agree in writing to waive the resolution meeting. If so, the 45 day 

hearing timeline will begin the next business day, unless the district and parent agree to try 
mediation in lieu of the resolution session. 

17. Time Limitations and Exception 
a. A parent must request a due process hearing within two years after the date of the district act or omission 

that gives rise to the parent's hearing request. 
b. This timeline does not apply to a parent if the district withheld relevant information from the parent or 

incorrectly informed the parent that it had resolved the problem that led the parent's hearing request. 
18. Hearing Costs . 

a. The district reimburses the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) for costs related to conducting the 
hearing, including pre-hearing conferences, scheduling arrangement and other related matters. 

b. The district provides the parent with a written or, at the option of the parent, an electronic verbatim 
recording of the hearing, within a reasonable time of the close of the hearing 

c. The district does not use IDEA funds to pay attorney's fees or other hearing costs. 
19. Discipline and Placement in Interim Alternative Setting 

See Board policy JGDA/JGEA - Discipline of Students with Disabilities. 

Special Education - Procedural Safeguards" - IGBAG-AR 
7-7 



-0 s ~;tJ1. :;;g~~~ 

Code: IGBB 
Adopted: 12/8/97 

Readopted: 10/12/98, 9/13/04, 
5/10/10 

Orig. Code(s): BP 8130 
Revision I st Reading: 2/14/2022 

Talented and Gifted Students 

Philosojjh)' 

Sweet Home School District is committed to an educational program that recognizes, identifies and serves the 
unique needs of talented and gifted students. Talented and gifted students are those who have been identified as 
academically talented and/or intellectually gifted. 

Distriet staff will seve!op proeesHres fer iseHtifyiHg aeasemieally taleHtes aHs intelleetHally gif!es stHsents K 12. 
The sistriet will se•,<elop a writteH plan whieh isentifies programs or serYices neeses to assress the assesses le•,·els 
of learning ans aeeelerates rates of learning of isentities stHSeHts. lnstrHetional programs ans services which shall 
be provises will be speeities in appropriate written coHrse statements. 
lsentitieatioH 

In orser to sep,•e acasemieally talentes ans iHtellectllally gifles stllsents in grases K 12, the Sweet Home Sehool 
Distriet has establishes a written isentifieation process which is feHns in the TAG Stasent l!ansbook lnelases in 
the hansbook is infermation regarsing the fellowing: 

I. 

2. 

3. 

Beha,·ioral, learning anslor perfermaHce infeffflation; 

A nationally stansarsi;,es mental abilit)' test fer assistance in isentifyiHg iHtelleetHally gif!es stasents; 

A nationally stansarsi;,es acasemie aehievement test fer assistance in iseHtif:,eing acasemically talentes 
stasents or OregeH Assessment of Knowlesge ans Skills (OAKS). 

lsentifies staseAts shall seore at er above the 97th pereentile en eHe of these tests_er show potential to perfeffi! at the 
97th percentile. 

The Sweet Heme School District will make an effert to isentif:,e talentes aHs gifles stasents from special 
pepalations sash as ealtaral ans ethnic minorities, sisasYantages, anseraehieving gif!es ans sisaeles learners. 

Careful seleetien of appropriate measares aHs a eolleetion of behavioral learning eharacteristies shall be ases in 
isentif:,eing stasents. 

Parent }letifieatien ans Particijjatien in Isentiticatien of a Stasent as Talentes ans Gifles 
Talented and Gifted Students - IGBB 

1-2 



Talented and Gifted Students - IGBB 
( continued) 

The Sweet Home Sehool Distriet will inferm parents of the iElentif-ieation of their sh1Elent as talentea ana giftea. The 
Elistriet shall mrther inferm parents of program or ser.·iee eptions a,·ailable an El pro·dae them an oppertunit)' to 
partieipate in seleeting those programs or options most appropriate fer the stllaent. 

Parents may, at any time, reeiuest the witharawal of their stuElent frem pregrams ana serYiees pro•,<iaea unaer OAR 
§81 922 1329 (Oregon AElministratiYe R~les). 

Talentea ana Giftea Pregram ana Ser.·iees 

A Elistriet written plan will be EleYelopeEI fer talentea ana giftea programs ana serYiees. All appropriate written 
eotirse statements shall iaentil:,· the aeaaemie instrnetional programs ana ser.·iees to be proviaea whieh aEIElress the 
assesses lewis ana aeeeleratea rates ef learning in iaentif-iea talenteEI anEI gifteEI stt1Elents. The stiperintenaent will 
remo·,·e any aElministratiYe barriers that may ei~ist whieh restriet stt1Elents' aeeess to appropriate ser.·iees ana will 
Ele,·elop program ana ser.·iee options. These options may be, btit are not limitea to the fellewing: elassreom le,·el 
options, btiilaing level options, Elistriet leYel eptiens er eiaenaea eptiens. 

Talentea ana GifteEI Pregram Aiiiieals Preeeatire 

An appeals preeeaure is aYailable fer parents whe ha,·e an iaentif-ieatien, plaeement er pregram appeal. Parents 
must eemplete the Talentea ana Giftea Stanaaras Appeal Ferm, a,·ailable at the seheol eff-iee. The appeals 
preeeaure is eutlinea belew: 

I. 

2. 

Parent will report appeals to builEling prineipal; 

The parent will be giYen the Talentea ana Giftea StanaarEls Apj3eal Ferm. This ferm must be f-illea out anEI 
returnee to the builEling j3rineij3al befere any mrther eonsiaeration ean be giYen to the aj3j3eal; 

3. 

4. 

The builaing l3Fineij3al ,,.,ill ferwara the aj3j3eal to the suj3erintenElent within three Elll;)'S of reeeiving the aj3j3eal; 

§. 

e. 

7-. 

8. 

9. 

The superintenaent shall arrange fer a re·Aev,, eommittee eensisting of the builaing TAG eoorElinatorlteaeher, 
the Elistriet TAG imj3lementor ana the builaing j3rineij3al or Elesignee; 

This eemmittee shall meet within f-ive working Sll;)'S ofreeeiYing the written aj3j3eal frem the superintenaent 
ana review all j3ertinent infermation. Their reeemmenElation will be submittea to the suj3erintenaent within 
IQ working Elays of reeeiYing the original aj3j3eal; 

The eommittee may reeommenEI one of the fellowing: 

a. 
b. 

The j3rograms or ser.·iees eurrently being flF8YiEleEI are apj3F0!3riate; 
The Oflfleal be tiphela in the whole or j3art. 

The stiperintenaent shall inferm the parent in writing of hislher aeeej3tanee or re;j eetion of the 
reeeHHflenaation of the review eommittee; 

The j3arent mil;)' aj3peal the Eleeision to the Beare. The Eleoision of the Beare shall be f-inal; 

If the j3arent remains Elissatisf-iea ana has ei~haustea Elistriet flFOeeaures, ana, if 4 § or more Sll;)'S have elaflsea 
sinee the original f-iling ef a written appeal alleging violatien of stanaaras with the seheel Elistriet, an aj3j3eal to 
the State Superintenaent of Publie lnstruetion ean be f-ilea. The sehool Elistriet shall j3reviae a eepy efthe 
apprej3riate Oregon AElministrative Rule Ufl0n reeiuest. 

END OF POLICY 
Legal Reference(s): 
ORS 343.391-343.401 
OAR 581.022.2230 

ORS 343.407.343.413 
OAR 581-022-2500 

OAR 581.022.2325 
SB 486 (2021 

2-2 


	Structure Bookmarks
	Figure
	Figure
	Figure
	· As ofnate: ·•. 9/13/21 1.••10/5/21 K 101 186 1 131 144 2 161 174 3 131 153 4 149 162 5 165 191 6 167 181 7 175 175 8 178 178 9 183 175 10 205 199 11 155 151 12 195 202 • ffotah•~i, ii;ftd96',;;. ')%~2.2_7'1~-1~(, As of Date: 9/13/21 10/5/21 Foster 339 323 Hawthorne 238 281 Hollev 124 139 Oak Heiqhts 304 303 Charter 0 134 Junior Hiqh 353 353 High School* 738 727 P.G.S.** Exoanded Oot. Tota.1~,::,_..•11liilir1l9i;i3.•>;;; }}S;;;226!!lliili!li '11/1/21 . 12/6/21 · 1/3/22 . 2/7/22 179 184 181 179 148 150 149 
	SWEET HOME SCHOOL DISTRICT ENROLLMENT As of: February 7th, 2022 2/7/2022 2126/2021 212812020 3/112019 GRADE K 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 21-22 20-21 19-20 18-19 4D.L. Total Total Total Total 2D.L. 2D.L. 3D.L. 2D.L. 31 7D.L. 3D.L. FO 25 18 17 12 19 27 24 320 308 333 338 28 18 20 26 28 25 26 McMahand II 2 l 3 7 3D.L. 3D.L. 3D,L, 4D.L. HA 16 15 16 19 22 21 28 276 300 364 349 17 12 18 81 14 19 28 DISTANCE LEARING STUDENTS INCLUDED IN TOTALS I 22 "TOTAL 124 DISTANCE LEARINGSTUDENTS I I Rolph/Pals 3 I 31 I I I 6 


